Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street

’ Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100
riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, December 19, 2023 in the Board Room
of the Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listed items
and such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon. This meeting
will be live streamed on RTA’s Board Page www.RideRTA.com/board via the meeting date for
staff and members of the public. Members of the public may attend in person.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA’s website at (www.riderta.com/board), on RTA's
Facebook page, and RTA’s Twitter page.

9:.00 AM. Board of Trustees Meeting — agenda attached

=S

India L. Birdsong Terry
eneral Manager, Chief Executive Officer

IBT:tab
Attachment

Scan this QR code to access the meeting schedule, live streams and meeting materials.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, December 19, 2023

9:.00 a.m.

Call to order
Roll Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting
Approval of the November 28, 2023 Board Meeting minutes
Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items:

a. Inperson

b. Phone: 440-276-4600

c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and staff

Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
s  Chair: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
¢  Chair: Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
o  Chair: Mayor Paul A. Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
¢ Chair: TBD

Civilian Oversight Committee (COC)
 Board Liaison: Ms. Lauren R. Weich

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
e Board Liaison: Ms. Deidre McPherson

Ad Hoc Committee reports:
e  Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee — President Charles P. Lucas, Chair
* Ad Hoc Technology Committee — Mr. Jeffrey W. Sleasman, Chair

Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions
Introduction of resolutions:

A. 2023-95 - Authorizing Contract No. 2023-115 with HFT Management, Inc., DBA
Gateway Outdoor Advertising, to provide Transit and Shelter Advertising Sales for



RTA Board of Trustees
December 19, 2023

Page 2

a period of five years with two, one-year options (Revenue-Generating, amount
variable based upon net sales)

. 2023-96 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-133 with Baycom, Inc. for the purchase

of ruggedized tablets for non-revenue vehicles, as specified, in an amount not to
exceed $263,444.40.00 (RTA Development Fund, Information Technology
Department budget)

. 2023-97 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-158 with Valley Ford Truck, Inc. for the

furnishing of one (1) medium duty truck (plow/dump/spreader) at a price not to
exceed $121,870.00 (RTA Capital Fund, Fleet Management Department budget)

. 2023-98 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-170 with Greve Chrysler Jeep Dodge for

the purchase and delivery of three (3) 2024 Dodge Durango trucks, equipment
and accessories, as specified, through the State of Ohio, Department of
Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program, in a total amount not
to exceed $226,608.00 (RTA Development Fund, Transit Police Department
budget)

. 2023-99 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-184 with Access Information

Management Corporation to provide records storage, management, and
destruction services, as required, for a period of five (5) years, in an amount not to
exceed $425,000.00 (General Fund, Support Services Department Budget)

2023-100 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-185 with Trapeze Software Group, Inc.
DBA Vontas to provide computer aided dispatch and automated vehicle locator
("CAD/AVL") maintenance and support services in an amount not to exceed
$4,559,274.00 for a period of five (5) years (General Fund, Information
Technology Department budget)

. 2023-101- Approval of the Authority’'s 2024 Public Transportation Agency Safety

Plan (“PTASP”)

. 2023-102 — Authorizing the purchase of property insurance from Liberty Mutual

and Evanston Insurance Company, through Aon Risk Services Northeast, Inc., for
a period of twelve (12) months for a total contract amount not to exceed
$1,469,243.00 (General Fund, Risk Management Department budget)

2023-103 — Making appropriations for the current expenses and other
expenditures for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority during Fiscal
Year 2024

2023-104 — Amending Chapter 465 Financial Assistance of the Codified Rules
and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

. 2023-105 — Amending Chapter 212 Definitions and Interpretation of the Codified

Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2023-106 — Approving a collective bargaining agreement with the Fraternal Order
of Police/Ohio Labor Council, Inc. covering conditions of employment for Transit
Police Lieutenants



RTA Board of Trustees
December 19, 2023
Page 3

16. Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

General Fund Revenue - status as of November 30, 2023 versus 2022 actuals

General Fund Revenue — status as of November 30, 2023 versus the 2023 budget

c. Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2023, actual receipts through
December 2023 - TO BE DELIVERED AT A LATER DATE

d. Inventory of Treasury Investments as of November 30, 2023

co

e. Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis) as of
November 30, 2023

f.  Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through November 30, 2023

g. Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of November 30, 2023

h.  Composition of Investment Portfolio as of November 30, 2023

i

Banking and Financial Relationships as of November 30, 2023
General Manager's Report
President’s Report
Old Business
New Business
Public comments (2 minutes) on public transit related items:
a. Inperson

b. Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded {o Board and staff

Executive Session Requested:

« To enable the Board to conference with GCRTA attorneys for information gathering, fact
finding, and to receive legal advice.

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 23, 2024 in the
Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland,
Ohio 44113. This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA’s Board page
(www.RideRTA . com/board) by clicking the meeting date. The public is welcome to attend
in person.

Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
10:57 a.m. November 28, 2023

Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Koomar (Vice Chair), Biasiotta, Love, McPherson, Sleasman, Weiss,
Welch

Not present: Mersmann

Staff/Other: Birdsong Terry, Burney, Caver, Dangelo, Davidson, Feke, Fesler, Fleig, Freilich, Garofoli,
Gautam, Harris, Johnson, Jones, Jupina, Kirkland, Marquit Renwald, Miller, Rusnov, Schipper, Smith,
Stover, Sutula, Talley, Togher, Walker Minor, Woodford, Wright, Young, Zimmerman

Public: Brewington, Gibbons, Johnson, Loh, Meissner, Rubin, Sopko, Ware

The meeting was called to order at 10:57 a.m. There were eight (8) Board members present.

It was advised that notice of this meeting had been posted more than twenty-four hours in advance of the
meeting, that the usual notification had been given the news media and other interested persons, and that

all requirements of the Ohic Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board regarding notice of
meeting had been complied with.

Minutes
President Lucas stated that the minutes from the October 31, 2023 Board Meeting had been previously
distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections. There were no

corrections. It was moved and seconded. The minutes were approved.

Introduction of Resolutions:

Resolution 2023-85 was introduced early in the agenda.

A. 2023-85 - Appointment of eleven members to the Community Advisory Committee, the
adoption of which was moved by Mayor Biasiotta, seconded by Ms. McPherson and approved
by unanimous vote.

Eight of the eleven (11) CAC appointed members were in attendance. They all took an oath of
office.

Public Comments — Agenda items

1. Lenny Stover — Lenny opposes Resolution 2023-94. Lenny believes the Red Line Greenway
should be preserved and a land bridge should not be built. Volunteers worked to keep the
Greenway a place to be enjoyed. A bridge could be built on Fulton Road.

2. Airric Stewart (caller) — Airric sent an email requesting some routes be reinstated. He also sent
emails to the new Board members. He hasn't heard back from them. He suggested numbers be
shared along with percentages from the TRACTION report earlier.

3. Chris Martin (caller) - Chris is concerned about safety while waiting for transit and while riding
transit. More frequent service could address this issue. CPT suggested a public facing database
for transparency. He congratulated the new CAC members.



RTA Board of Trustees
November 28, 2023
Page 2 of 5

4. Laura McShane (webform) — | am asking the RTA board to reject the proposed "carte blanche"
amendment to the 2021 DUA with the Marons and to terminate this shady deal forever. RTA board:
please prioritize the renovation of the W 25th Station by providing pedestrian access to the train
platform from the Metroparks' Red Line Greenway trail* and commit to save the wildlife habitat
slated for senseless destruction. honor the legacy of Stan Adams, Pete Presson, Dutch Harley and
Rotary volunteers led by Lennie Stover. (*this is possible because it is used at E34 and E79)

5. Sam McNulty (webform) - The Scottish poet Alexander Smith wisely said, "A man doesn't plant a
tree for himself. He plants it for posterity.”

I've visited Ohio City with my parents and six siblings since the 1970s, and in the last 22 years I've
lived, worked, and played in this great neighborhood. My business partners and | have renovated
140,000 square feet of vacant properties in Ohio City, opened 6 businesses, and have created
over 200 well-paying jobs in the neighborhood. We recently built 7 transit-oriented

townhomes on a vacant property in the adjacent Duck Island neighborhood.

In other words, I'm very much in favor of dense, urban development. This is why | studied Urban
Planning and Real Estate Development at CSU's Urban Studies College. It was there that | learned
that dense transit-oriented development only works when it is balanced with publicly

accessible green space.

| write today to express my strong opposition to the development of the RTA-owned land adjacent
to the Metroparks Redline Greenway. The sale of publicly owned green space - indeed, one

that includes a protected wetland - to private for-profit developers is not in the best interests of
taxpayers and the quality of life of the surrounding neighborhoods. I've watched thick clouds of
migrating monarchs hovering over this narrow stretch of wooded habitat. And the migrating tropical
forest songbirds and ruby-throated hummingbirds that visit in spring and fall are a sight to behold.

The forested habitat along the Metroparks will be enjoyed by Clevelanders of all walks of life. The
Western Reserve Land Conservancy could step in and purchase this urban forest from RTA and
permanently protect it from development so that it can forever be part of the growing Cleveland
Metroparks Emerald Necklace. Posterity will thank us.

Committee Reports

There were no reports.

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

There was no report.

Ad Hoc Committee Reports

There were no reports.

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

There were 35 new hires and 19 promotions. Their names and positions are listed in the presentation
slides.

Executive Session Requested

11:27 a.m. - Executive session was requested to consider the purchase of property for public
purchases or the sale of property at competitive bidding. It was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded
by Ms. Welch. There were seven (7) ayes and none opposed.



RTA Board of Trustees
November 28, 2023
Page 3 of 5

12:07 p.m. — It was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Ms. Welch to come out of executive session.
There were seven (7) ayes and none opposed.

Introduction of Resolutions

B.

2023-86 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-99 with Northeast Ohio Trenching Service, Inc. for
Project 18.92 — E. 115" & Superior Eastbound Healthline Station Rehabilitations as specified,
in an amount not to exceed $138,900.00 (RTA Capital Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar,
seconded by Mr. Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote.

2023-87 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-100 with Schindler Elevator Corporation to provide
Elevator and Escalator Maintenance and Repair Services, for a base period of three years in
an amount not to exceed $2,980,356.00, with two, one-year options in amounts not to exceed
$1,049,891.00 and $1,077,427.00, respectively, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$5,107,674.00 for a period of five years (General Fund, Service Management Department
budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Ms. Welch and
approved by unanimous vote.

2023-88 — Authorizing the exercise of an option under Contract No. 2021-125 with Siemens
Mobility, Inc. for the purchase and delivery of up to six (6) High Floor Light Rail Vehicles at a
unit price of $5,166,336.00, for an amount not to exceed $30,998,016.00 (RTA Development
Fund, Fleet Management Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by

Mayor Koomar, seconded by Mr. Love and approved by unanimous vote.

2023-89 — To amend the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 Revenues and Appropriations, as adopted in
Resolution No. 2022-113, to provide for an increase in the appropriation for the Law
Enforcement Fund in the amount of $60,000, the adoption of which was moved by

Mayor Koomar, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous vote.

2023-90 — Removing Sections 644.07 Temporary Salary Adjustment, 644.08 Health Care
Coverage, 644.09 Prior Service Credit and 644.13 Tuition Reimbursement from the Codified
Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority as duplicates of
Personnel Policies 400.07, 400.08, 400.09 and 400.13, the adoption of which was moved by
Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms. Welich and approved by unanimous vote.

2023-91 — Removing Sections 648.01 Smoke-Free Workplace, 648.04 Employee Assistance
Program, 648.06 Biennial Physical Examination Requirements, 648.08 Driver’s License
Requirements, 648.09 Safety Belt Usage, 648.10 Hazardous Waste and 648.11 Workplace
Violence from the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority as duplicates of Personnel Policies 600.01, 600.04, 600.06, 600.08, 600.09, 600.10
and 600.11, the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Mr. Love and
approved by unanimous vote.

2023-92 — Removing Sections 646.01 Holidays, 646.03 Bereavement Leave, 646.04 Sick
Leave, 646.05 Extended Disability Coverage, 646.06 Jury Duty, 646.07 Military Reserve
Leave, 646.08 Unpaid Leaves of Absence and 646.09 Family and Medical Leave from the
Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority as
duplicates of Personnel Policies 500.01, 500.03, 500.04, 500.05, 500.06, 500.07, 500.08 and
500.09, the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Ms. Welch and
approved by unanimous vote.



RTA Board of Trustees
November 28, 2023
Page 4 of 5

I.  2023-93 — Authorizing an agreement with the City of Shaker Heights for Landscape
Maintenance and Parking Lot Snow Removal for a period of one year beginning January 1,
2024 in an amount not to exceed $290,735.52 (General Fund, Programming & Planning
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by

Ms. Welch. There were six (6) ayes and one (1) abstention from Mayor Weiss. It passed.
J. 2023-94 — Authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to execute the first

amendment to the Development and Use Agreement with AJAPPJR, LLC, an Ohio Limited

Liability Company, the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by

Mr. Sleasman. There were seven (7) ayes and none opposed. |t passed.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the report. In June
2022, the rate of inflation hit 9.1%. Since then, it has been on a steady decline. At the end of October
2023, inflation came in at 3.2% lower than the 3.7% in September 2023. The Federal Reserve raised
interest rates again back in July to 5.5%. The Federal Open Market Commitiee met on Nov. 1. They
decided to keep the target rate at 5.5%. They are scheduled to meet December 13 to discuss further
interest rate action. Interest rates are at the highest level in 22 years.

Ridership data goes back to pre-Pandemic levels in 2019 at 27.06 million rides. YTD through 2023, we
have 18.22 million rides. That is 8.84 miilion rides lower or 32.7%. October ridership was up 14% when
compared to October 2022. October passenger fare revenue was 53.5% below October 2022. Thisis a
result of timing. Student fare cards revenue received in October 2022 accounted for that decline. YTD
passenger fares in 2019 were 32.39 million. YTD through October 2023, it is 22.93 million which is 9.46
million lower or 29.2%. Sales tax receipts remain strong. YTD sales tax is up 3%, nearly $7 million higher
than 2022. Fifteen of the 23 categories were positive in November 2023 compared to November 2022.
Online sales were 8.1% higher. Regular and statewide sales were 2.9% higher. Motor vehicles and
watercraft were 8.3% lower.

General Manager/CEQ Report

India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEO gave the report. GCRTA veterans were recognized Nov.
6-11 with videos, a marketing campaign, a panel discussion, new resource group, City of Cleveland event
and a special pin. The new EngageRTA webpage launches today. The page was created {o receive
special event requests and services. GM/CEQ Birdsong Terry will be honored by the YWCA as one of
their Women of Achievement on May 30, 2024 at Severance Hall. RTA celebrated National
Apprenticeship Week, November 13-19. RTA has a bus mechanic and rail mechanic apprenticeship
programs and an Operator Mentoring program.

The Operator Mentoring Program, Positive Impact — celebrated those who recently went through the
program on November 17. RTA hosted ATU International representatives, FTA and the Transportation
Learning Center. Several transit systems’ training divisions were in attendance. T-shirts for RTA’s
Employee Resource groups are in the design form. Elevating Women Together, Latinos Unidos and Pride
are among the resource groups. The Holiday Trolley will run from Nov. 18 — Dec. 17. The trolley will make
appearances at several community events. Holiday District Visits started Nov. 16 and will run through
Dec. 20.

Public Comments — public transit related items

1. Loh - Loh was late today’s due to the snow resulting in buses being slow. Loh rides the #9. Two
scheduled buses did not show up. This route was reduced to a 30-minute frequency. The system
redesign covered businesses, healthcare and retail, but doesn’t cover all residential areas. Loh is
unhoused. Loh suggested text service alerts be used again and shelter locations be reviewed.



RTA Board of Trustees
November 28, 2023
Page 5 of 5

2. Abigail — Abigail represents TK Elevator. She asked for more information on why Schindler was
chosen for this contract. Ms. Dangelo will speak with her after the meeting.

3. Airric Stewart (caller) — Airric is still having issues with the survey line. He requested it be fixed.
He asked the staff and CAC to experience traveling in inclement weather such as today and
question why the 15A is still not back in service.

4. Chris Martin (caller) — Chris’ plan is to solve the operator shortage, increase ridership, and create
more safety and security. He hasn’t seen any action to advance the Strategic Plan and Climate
Action Plan goals.

5. Samuel Hutchins (webform) — | would like to be a member of your board.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, December 19, 2023, in the Board Room of the
Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will be live
streamed on RTA's Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by selecting the meeting date. The public is
welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 12:35 p.m.

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



326

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22

Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: TRANSIT AND SHELTER ADVERTISING SALES FORA | 2023-95

PERIOD OF FIVE YEARS, WITH TWO, ONE-YEAR Date-

OPTIONS December 14, 2023

VENDOR:  HFT MANAGEMENT, INC., DBA GATEWAY OUTDOOR | Initiator:

AMOUNT:  MINIMUM ANNUAL GUARANTEE BUT ACTUAL Department

ADVERTISING Administratiqn &
External Affairs

REVENUE IS VARIABLE, DEPENDING ON ACTUAL
SALES

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval 0O Review/Comment O Information Only [0 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to enter into a revenue-generating contract for transit and shelter advertising sales
for a period of five years with two, one-year options for renewal.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority desires to maximize revenue-generating
opportunities by combining two existing revenue-generating programs that are both
established and beneficial to the Authority: transit and shelter advertising sales. Proposals
were sought from qualified advertising firms with experience in transit advertising markets. The
selected firm will generate revenue for the Authority from the sale of transit and shelter
advertising media. The selected vendor will also service and maintain the transit and shelter
advertising space.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposals (“RFP”) was posted on the
Authority’s Procurement website and advertised in local newspapers. Fourteen interested
parties downloaded the solicitation, and three proposals were received on October 6, 2023.
After evaluation by a panel of Authority employees in accordance with established
Procurement Department policies and procedures, the proposal of HFT Management, Inc., dba
Gateway Outdoor Advertising, to provide transit and shelter advertising sales, was determined
to be the most advantageous to the Authority, guaranteed revenue and all other factors
considered. HFT Management, Inc., dba Gateway Outdoor Advertising, will pay a minimum
annual guarantee (“MAG”) to the Authority for each contract year, as shown below, and a 65%
revenue share for any revenue exceeding the MAG.

Contract Year MAG
2024 $ 1,200,000
2025 $ 1,400,000
2026 $ 1,600,000
2027 $ 1,700,000
2028 $ 1,800,000
2029 $ 1,900,000
2030 $ 2,000,000

Total MAG $ 11,600,000

A revenue analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined the
MAG and revenue sharing proposal to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.



Staff Summary & Comments i
Transit and Shelter Advertising Sales 2023-95

Page 2

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development does not
conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish DBE goals on revenue generated agreements.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: The Authority will be paid the MAG annually. The exact revenue amount
is directly dependent upon the amount of advertising sales revenue generated. Funds will be
deposited into the General Fund.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would deny the Authority the
economic benefits of transit and shelter advertising revenue.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
December 5, 2023 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. It
is recommended that the offer of HFT Management, Inc., dba Gateway Outdoor Advertising,
be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

b 25ttt Fer Delegntio

/ General Wger, Chief Executive Officer ¢




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-95

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-115 WITH HFT MANAGEMENT, INC., DBA
GATEWAY OUTDOOR ADVERTISING, TO PROVIDE TRANSIT AND SHELTER
ADVERTISING SALES FOR A PERIOD OF FIVE YEARS WITH TWO, ONE-YEAR
OPTIONS (REVENUE-GENERATING, AMOUNT VARIABLE BASED UPON NET
SALES)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) permits the
sale of advertising space on certain specified transit vehicles, shelters, and property; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to maximize the revenue generating opportunities at
its disposal by the sale of transit-related advertising media; and

WHEREAS, transit and shelter advertising sales are available from HFT Management,
Inc., dba Gateway Outdoor Advertising, headquartered in New Jersey; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of HFT
Management, Inc., dba Gateway Outdoor Advertising, as negotiated, to be in the best interest of
the Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of HFT Management, Inc., dba Gateway Outdoor Advertising,
to provide transit and shelter advertising sales for a period of five years with two, one-year
options be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a revenue-generating contract with HFT Management,
Inc., dba Gateway Outdoor Advertising, to provide transit and shelter advertising sales for a
period of five years and is authorized to exercise two, one-year options.

Section 3. The Authority will be paid the MAG annually. The exact revenue amount is
directly dependent upon the amount of advertising sales revenue generated. Funds will be
deposited into the General Fund.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 19, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: RUGGEDIZED TABLETS FOR NON-REVENUE 2023-96
VEHICLES .
Date:
December 14, 2023
VENDOR:  BAYCOM, INC. Initiator: Information
Technology
AMOUNT: $263,444.40 Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment O Information Only 0O Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority (“Authority”) to enter into a contract to provide ruggedized tablets for non-revenue
vehicles.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority’s Transit Police operate a Computer Aided
Dispatch and Automated Vehicle Locator (“CAD/AVL") software. The CAD/AVL, along with the
Authority’s radio system, allow the Transit Police dispatchers to communicate and track
vehicles. Officers utilize the CAD/AVL on their computers to verify real-time data with the
dispatchers to help improve situational awareness and improve speed and accuracy of field
reporting.

The Authority’s support departments, including Service Quality, Electronic Repair and Mobile
Equipment Mechanics, play vital roles in keeping equipment and services running at safe and
optimal levels. These departments utilize the CAD/AVL system to locate vehicles in service,
view real-time data/communications, and to respond to urgent needs of the vehicles and
passengers. For the CAD/AVL systems to function properly, the hardware and software must
be maintained and operational. If one hardware/software component fails, it affects the system
and, in many cases, causes the other areas of the system to fail.

The current devices are several years old and many of them are not rated for rugged/mobile
usage, causing further system failures and repetitive maintenance. The Authority has identified
a viable ruggedized solution to meet the needs of each of these departments. Replacing these
devices will ensure the safety of our passengers, employees and vehicles, as well as maintain
the highest level of our services possible.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (“IFB”) was posted on the
Authority’s Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Forty-one (41)
interested parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. Six
(6) bids were received and opened on October 12, 2023. Of those six (6) bids, there were two
(2) responsive bids. They are as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
Baycom, Inc. $263,444 .40
Southern Computer Warehouse $297,251.74

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid price. Baycom, Inc. was determined to be a responsible bidder. The Total Base Bid price
of $263,444.40 from Baycom, Inc. is 24.73% below the project estimate of $349,995.00.




Staff Summary & Comments 2023-96
Ruggedized Tablets for Non-Revenue Vehicles
Page 2

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

A price analysis has been performed, and the bid of Baycom, Inc. has been determined by the
Procurement Department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified DBE
firms.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development
Fund, Information Technology Department budget, including but not limited to 100%
local funds, pending FTA Capital grant revision OH-2023-042, for a total contract
amount not to exceed $263,444.40.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid will impair the Authority’s ability to
ensure the safety of our passengers, employees, and vehicles.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
December 5, 2023 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. It
is recommended that the bid from Baycom, Inc. be accepted and the resolution passed
authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

Lt j T

ﬁeneral Manager, Chief Executsv 0]




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-96

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-133 WITH BAYCOM, INC. FOR THE
PURCHASE OF RUGGEDIZED TABLETS FOR NON-REVENUE VEHICLES, AS
SPECIFIED, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $263,444.40.00 (RTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT
BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) deems it
necessary to purchase ruggedized tablets for non-revenue vehicles used by Transit Police,
Service Quality, Electronic Repair and Mobile Equipment Mechanics departments; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Baycom, Inc., located at 2040 Radisson St., Green Bay,
Wisconsin, 54302, was received on October 12, 2023, in an amount not to exceed
$263,444.40.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Baycom,
Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Baycom, Inc. for the purchase of ruggedized tablets for non-
revenue vehicles, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Baycom, Inc. for the purchase of
ruggedized tablets for non-revenue vehicles.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Information Technology Department budget, including but not limited to, 100% local funds
pending FTA Capital grant revision OH-2023-042, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$263,444 .40.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Baycom, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to this
procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 19, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF ONE (1) MEDIUM DUTY TRUCK 2023-97
(PLOW/DUMP/SPREADER) Date-

VENDOR: VALLEY FORD TRUCK, INC.

AMOUNT: $121,870.00

December 14, 2023
Initiator: Fleet
Management
Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [ Review/Comment O Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority (“Authority”) to enter into a contract for the furnishing of one (1) medium duty
truck (plow/dump/spreader).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The new vehicle will replace truck #34050 which was an
older vehicle that was totaled in an accident. Per the non-revenue vehicle replacement plan, a
new replacement truck is needed to continue quality services. The vehicle will be used for
snow removal and for salting the roads, driveways, and parking lots.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (“IFB”) was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Thirteen (13) interested parties
downloaded the solicitation. One (1) responsive bid was received on November 15, 2023. The
bid of Valley Ford Truck, Inc. has been determined by the Procurement Department to be the
lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder.

Medium Duty Truck (plow/dump/spreader)
Vendor Unit Price
Valley Ford Truck $121,870.00

A price analysis has been performed, and the bid price is approximately 11% below the
budget estimate. The Procurement Department has determined the price to be fair and
reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified DBE
firms.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the RTA Capital Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $121,870.00.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid would cause delays in the procurement
of a replacement vehicle and hinder service quality.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of Valley Ford Truck, Inc. be accepted
and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter
into a contract.

ATTACHMENT: None



Staff Summary & Comments
Furnishing of Medium Duty Truck (Plow/Dump/Spreader)
Page 2

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

eneral Manager, Chief %tiv@?&“’é‘?

2023-97



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-97

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-158 WITH VALLEY FORD TRUCK, INC.
FOR THE FURNISHING OF ONE (1) MEDIUM DUTY TRUCK
(PLOW/DUMP/SPREADER) AT A PRICE NOT TO EXCEED $121,870.00 (RTA
CAPITAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) has identified
the need for the purchase of one (1) medium duty truck (plow/dump/spreader); and

WHEREAS, the bid of Valley Ford Truck, Inc., located at 5715 Canal Road, Cleveland,
Ohio 44125, to furnish a medium duty truck (plow/dump/spreader) was received on November
15, 2023 at a price not to exceed $121,870.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Valley Ford
Truck, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Valley Ford Truck, Inc. to furnish one (1) medium duty truck
(plow/dump/spreader) be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Valley Ford Truck, Inc. for the furnishing of
one (1) medium duty truck (plow/dump/spreader).

Section 3. This contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital Fund, Fleet Management
Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $121,870.00.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements; and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Valley Ford Truck, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned
to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 19, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary- Treasurer



Form Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

100-326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PURCHASE OF THREE (3) 2024 DODGE DURANGO 2023-98

December 14, 2023
VENDOR: GREVE CHRYSLER JEEP DODGE Initiator-
) Transit Police

AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $226,608.00 Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval 0O Review/Comment O Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to enter into a contract for the delivery of three (3) 2024 Dodge Durango trucks,
equipment and accessories, through the State of Ohio (“State”), Department of Administrative
Services (“‘DAS"), State Term Schedule (“STS").

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority requires the replacement of three (3) of the
current Transportation Security Administration vehicles, for the transport of canine officers, that
have exceeded the allowed mileage per the guidelines of the National Explosive Detection
Canine Team Program. These vehicles will be used to support Transit Police.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Pursuant to R.C. 306.43(H)(4) and Section 410.03 of the
Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, the Board
of Trustees authorized the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to participate in State
DAS contracts for the purchase of supplies, services, equipment and certain materials.

This resolution will authorize the purchase and delivery of three (3) 2024 Dodge Durango
trucks, equipment and accessories, from Greve Chrysler Jeep Dodge through the Cooperative
Purchasing Program, Contract No. RSI018242, in a total amount not to exceed $226,608.00.
The prices established under the State program are the resuit of a competitive process.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development does not
Affirmative Action reviews or establish goals on procurements included in the State
Cooperative Purchasing program.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Transit Police Department budget, including but not limited to 100% local funds, in an amount
not to exceed $226,608.00 for three (3) vehicles, equipment and accessories. The U.S.
Department of Homeland Security, Transportation Security Administration has authorized the
Authority to use its National Explosives Detection Canine Team Program available funds for
the purchase of these three (3) vehicles, equipment and accessories, in a total amount not to
exceed $226,608.00, which will be 100% reimbursed by the program.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would delay the Authority’s purchase
of replacement vehicles, prolonging the need to maintain equipment that has exceeded its life
expectancy.




Staff Summary & Comments
Purchase of Three (3) 2024 Dodge Durango Vehicles 2023-98

Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer of Greve Chrysler Jeep Dodge, be
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

'G;éf’neral Manager, Chief ExetTitive éger




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-98

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-170 WITH GREVE CHRYSLER JEEP
DODGE FOR THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF THREE (3) 2024 DODGE
DURANGO TRUCKS, EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES, AS SPECIFIED,
THROUGH THE STATE OF OHIO, DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE
SERVICES, COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM, IN A TOTAL AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $226,608.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, TRANSIT
POLICE DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) has identified
the need to purchase new vehicles, that have exceeded their useful life, for the transport of
canine officers; and

WHEREAS, the three (3) vehicles are available through the State of Ohio, Department of
Administrative Services, State Term Schedule; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 306.43(H)(4) permits a regional transit authority to enter into a contract
for the purchase of goods or services from another political subdivision, public agency, public
transit system, regional transit authority, the state, or the federal government, or as a third-party
beneficiary under a state or federal procurement contract, or as a participant in a department of
administrative services contract under division (B) of section 125.04 of the Revised Code; and

WHEREAS, under Section 410.03 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, the Board of Trustees authorized participation in State
contracts which DAS has entered into for the purchase of supplies, services, equipment and
certain materials; and

WHEREAS, Greve Chrysler Jeep Dodge, with an office located at 756 W. Ervin, Van
Wert, OH 45891, has offered to deliver three (3) 2024 Dodge Durango trucks, equipment and
accessories for a total negotiated contract amount not to exceed $226,608.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deemed in the best interest of
the Authority to procure the required vehicles, equipment and accessories from Greve Chrysler
Jeep Dodge, utilizing the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Greve Chrysler Jeep Dodge, to provide three (3) 2024
Dodge Durango trucks, equipment and accessories, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Greve Chrysler Jeep Dodge to provide the
Authority with three (3) 2024 Dodge Durango trucks, equipment and accessories.

Section 3. This contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund, Transit
Police Department budget, including but not limited to 100% local funds, in an amount not to
exceed $226,608.00 for three (3) vehicles, equipment and accessories. The U.S. Department of
Homeland Security, Transportation Security Administration has authorized the Authority to use
its National Explosives Detection Canine Team Program available funds for the purchase of
these three (3) vehicles, equipment and accessories, in a total amount not to exceed
$226,608.00, which will be 100% reimbursed.



Resolution No. 2023-98
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements; and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 19, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary- Treasurer



| b Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
) Regional Transit Authority

To: Rev. Charles P. Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
Date: December 14, 2023
Subject: Records Storage, Management and Destruction Services for Five Years

At the December 19, 2023 meeting of the Board of Trustees, GCRTA will seek approval to
award a contract for Records Storage, Management and Destruction Services for a period of
five years.

R.C. 306.43(H)(2) provides that competitive procedures are not required when the purchase
consists of goods or services, or any combination thereof, and after reasonable inquiry the
board or any officer or employee the board designates finds that only one source of supply is
reasonably available.

The Authority has been using the proprietary storage services and technology of the same
vendor for twenty-five (25) years. The Authority last competed this five-year service in 2013, at
which time only one proposal was received. Since prior competitive procurements have
demonstrated that the current vendor is the only vendor reasonably available to provide these
services, the vendor has been determined to be a sole source.

Regulations allow GCRTA to negotiate with the sole source provider of these services. The
attached resolution recommends contract award to Access Information Management

Corporation to provide records storage, management, and destruction services for a period of
five years, which is deemed fair and reasonable to the Authority.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday’s
meeting.

IBT/MD

Attachment



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: RECORDS STORAGE, MANAGEMENT AND 2023-99
DESTRUCTION SERVICES, AS REQUIRED Date:

VENDOR: ACCESS INFORMATION MANAGEMENT

December 14, 2023

CORPORATION Initiator:
Support Services

AMOUNT: NTE $425,000.00 FOR A PERIOD OF FIVE (5) YEARS Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment O Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority (“Authority”) to enter into a contract for records storage, management, and
destruction services, as required, for a period of five (5) years.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: Laws and regulations require the Authority to maintain
records for a specified length of time and to destroy records according to the Authority’s
records retention schedule. A record can be a file, blueprint or other form of
documentation. The records storage center is used for storage of inactive and permanent
paper records, secured records, and bulk storage. Currently, there are more than 11,300
containers in storage. It is impossible to maintain this volume of records within the
Authority’s offices due to space constraints, security concerns, and the environmental
requirements needed to preserve these records. Therefore, having an off-site records
storage facility is in the best interest of the Authority.

The services to be performed under this Contract include, but are not limited to,
destruction and document scanning. The vendor provides a chain of custody with barcode
scanning on all items traveling to and from the Authority. The Authority can consolidate
pickups and deliveries, which provides cost savings and an added level of security. In
addition to storage, Access Information Management Corporation will continue to scan and
shred the records as part of the cataloging system to reduce costs for transportation to a
scanning and shredding facility, as well as to maintain a chain of custody.

Access Information Management Corporation (formerly known as Retrievex, Inc. dba
Access Information Management, Cintas Corporation and Andrews Records Management,
Inc.) has successfully performed the Authority’s records management services since 1998.
In addition to the Authority, other current clients include the State of Ohio, Cleveland Clinic
Foundation, Lincoln Electric and University Hospitals, among many others.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: This contract for records storage and services is
exempt from competitive procedures, pursuant to R.C. 306.43(H)(2). Access Information
Management Corporation offered to provide records storage, management, and
destruction services, as required, at negotiated rates, in an amount not to exceed
$425,000.00 for a period of five (5) years.




Staff Summary & Comments 2023-99
Records Storage, Management, and Destruction Services
Page 2

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

The Authority last competed this service in 2013, at which time only one proposal was
received. Since prior competitive procurements have demonstrated that the current vendor
is the only vendor reasonably available to provide these proprietary services, the vendor
has been determined to be a sole source.

A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined that
the negotiated rates are fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified
DBE firms.

POLICY IMPACT: This procurement will permit the Authority to provide records storage,
management, and destruction services, as required, in accordance with the Authority’s
Administrative Procedure No. 009 and Ohio law.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The contract will be funded through the General Fund, Support
Services Department budget, contingent upon Board approval of the FY 2024 General
Fund Budget, in an amount not to exceed $425,000.00 for a period of five (5) years.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would require the Authority to
store records on-site at a considerable expense due to space constraints, security needs,
and environmental requirements needed to preserve those records.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer of Access Information
Management Corporation be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legal form, and conformance
with the Procurement requirements.

é@;ﬁ

General Manager Chief Execu ve fficer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-99

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-184 WITH ACCESS INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT CORPORATION TO PROVIDE RECORDS STORAGE,
MANAGEMENT, AND DESTRUCTION SERVICES, AS REQUIRED, FOR A
PERIOD OF FIVE (5) YEARS, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $425,000.00
(GENERAL FUND, SUPPORT SERVICES DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, laws and regulations require the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority (“Authority”) to maintain records in accordance with the Authority’s records retention
schedule; and

WHEREAS, Access Information Management Corporation, located at 1 Andrews Circle,
Brecksville, OH 44141, and its predecessors, have cataloged and stored the Authority’s records
utilizing their proprietary system and storage facility for twenty-five years; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 306.43(H)(2) provides that competitive procedures are not required
when the purchase consists of goods or services, or any combination thereof, and after
reasonable inquiry the board or any officer or employee the board designates finds that only one
source of supply is reasonably available; and

WHEREAS, the Authority’s records management program is designed for the records
storage, management, and destruction system established by Access Information Management
Corporation, and no other vendor has access to the Access Information Management
Corporation facility or its cataloging system; and

WHEREAS, Access Information Management Corporation has offered to provide
records storage, management, and destruction services, as required, at negotiated rates
resulting in a total contract amount not to exceed $425,000.00 for a period of five (5) years; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Access
Information Management Corporation, as negotiated, to provide records storage, management,
and destruction services, as required, to be in the best interest of the Authority and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Access Information Management Corporation to provide
records storage, management, and destruction services, as required, for a period of five (5)
years, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Access Information Management
Corporation to provide said services, as required, for a period of five (5) years.

Section 3. That said contract shall be funded from the General Fund, Support Services
Department budget, contingent upon Board approval of the FY 2024 General Fund Budget, in
an amount not to exceed $425,000.00 for a period of five (5) years.



Resolution No. 2023-99
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor with the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Access Information Management Corporation will attempt to exceed the 0%
minimum DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 19, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: COMPUTER AIDED DISPATCH AND AUTOMATED 2023-100
VEHICLE LOCATOR (CAD/AVL) MAINTENANCE AND Date:
SUPPORT December 14, 2023
Initiator:;
VENDOR:  TRAPEZE SOFTWARE GROUP, INC. DBA Information
VONTAS Technology
Department
AMOUNT:  NTE $4,559,274.00 FOR A PERIOD OF FIVE (5) YEARS

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval 0O Review/Comment O Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
("Authority") to enter into a negotiated agreement to provide maintenance and support services
for the Authority’s Computer Aided Dispatch and Automated Vehicle Locator (“CAD/AVL")
system for a period of five (5) years.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority utilizes “OnRoute” software, a product of
Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas (“Vontas”), for its CAD/AVL system. The CAD/AVL
system, along with the Authority’s radio system, allows the Authority to track vehicles, monitor
on-time performance, talk/text with vehicle operators, obtain real-time vehicle tracking and
operator turn-by-turn navigation, and provides remote device management and vehicle
diagnostics for predictive maintenance. In order for the CAD/AVL and radio system to function
properly, the hardware and software must be maintained and operational at all times. If one
software or hardware component fails, it can affect the entire system and, in many cases
cause other areas of the system to fail. A maintenance and service agreement with the
original provider is vital to the operation of the CAD/AVL system. If there is a hardware or
software failure, the Authority will need Vontas to correct the problem as quickly as possible.
In addition to software fixes (patches), the Authority will also receive free upgrades and
training.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Per R.C. 306.43(H)(3), competitive procedures are not
required when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for
telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the
upgrade of such equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof, as supplied
by the original source or its successors or assigns. Vontas is the original provider and
developer of the Authority’s CAD/AVL software and hardware.

The Procurement Department requested a proposal from Vontas on November 16, 2023.
Vontas offered to provide CAD/AVL maintenance and support services for a period of five (5)
years in a total contract amount not to exceed $4,559,274.00 (2024 - $825,549.00; 2025 -
$866,480.00; 2026 - $909,697.00; 2027 - $955,021.00; and 2028 - $1,002,527.00). The
Information Technology and Procurement Departments reviewed the proposal for adherence to
the technical requirements. The proposal submitted by Vontas, as negotiated, is 13% below
the independent cost estimate of $5,225,000.00, which was based on historical pricing.

A cost analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department determined that the
negotiated price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.



Staff Summary & Comments

2023-100

CAD/AVL Maintenance and Support
Page 2

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: A 0% DBE goal was established for this
procurement because it is for the maintenance of proprietary software, in which work is limited
and exclusive to the original provider and installer by agreement.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable through the General Fund, Information
Technology Department budget, in amounts not to exceed $825,549.00 Fiscal Year ("FY”)
2024, $866,480.00 FY 2025, $909,697.00 FY 2026, $955,021.00 FY 2027, and $1,002,527.00
FY 2028, for a total contract amount not to exceed $4,559,274.00 for a period of five (5) years.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would prevent or delay the renewal of
the Authority’s CAD/AVL maintenance and support agreement, hindering essential software
and hardware support for maintaining the Authority’s CAD/AVL and radio system, which are
vital to providing safety-critical transit communications and efficient operations.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
December 5, 2023 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. It
is recommended that the offer of Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas, as negotiated, be
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

L Vs Zn

Geﬁeral Manager, Chief Execttivé




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-100

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-185 WITH TRAPEZE SOFTWARE
GROUP, INC. DBA VONTAS TO PROVIDE COMPUTER AIDED DISPATCH AND
AUTOMATED VEHICLE LOCATOR (“CAD/AVL") MAINTENANCE AND
SUPPORT SERVICES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $4,559,274.00 FOR A
PERIOD OF FIVE (5) YEARS (GENERAL FUND, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) currently
utilizes Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas licensed products (“OnRoute”) for its
Computer Aided Dispatch and Automated Vehicle Locator ("“CAD/AVL") applications, and has
an ongoing need for maintenance and support to ensure the system is reliable and functioning
properly; and

WHEREAS, the Authority’s CAD/AVL software is proprietary to Trapeze Software Group,
Inc., dba Vontas, the original provider and installer of this software; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 306.43(H)(3) provides that competitive bidding is not required when
the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for telecommunications or
electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the upgrade of such
equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as supplied by the original
source or its successors or assigns; and

WHEREAS, the offer of Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas, located at 5265
Rockwell Drive NE, Cedar Rapids, lowa 52402, to provide CAD/AVL maintenance and support
services was received on November 28, 2023; and

WHEREAS, after negotiations, a total price not to exceed $4,559,274.00 for a period of
five (5) years was agreed upon; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Trapeze
Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas, as negotiated, to provide CAD/AVL maintenance and support
services for a period of five (5) years, to be in the best interest of the Authority and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas, as negotiated, to
provide Computer Aided Dispatch and Automated Vehicle Locator (“CAD/AVL") maintenance
and support services for a period of five (5) years be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas,
as negotiated, to provide CAD/AVL maintenance and support services for a period of five (5)
years.

Section 3. This contract shall be payable through the General Fund, Information
Technology Department budget in amounts not to exceed $825,549.00 Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2024,
$866,480.00 FY 2025, $909,697.00 FY 2026, $955,021.00 FY 2027, and $1,002,527.00 FY
2028, for a total contract amount not to exceed $4,559,274.00 for a period of five (5) years.



Resolution No. 2023-100
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor with the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the

Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Trapeze Software Group, Inc. dba Vontas will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum
DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 19, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22 ;

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2023- 101

APPROVAL OF THE AUTHORITY'S 2024 PUBLIC Date:

TRANSPORTATION AGENCY SAFETY PLAN (PTASP) December 14, 2023
Initiator:
Safety Department

ACTION REQUEST:

O Approval 0 Review/Comment [0 Information Only O Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will approve the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority’s (“Authority”) 2024 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (“PTASP”). Under
Federal Transit Administration (“FTA”) regulations, the PTASP must be approved by the
transit agency’s governing board.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority’s PTASP Labor Management Safety
Committee has prepared a 2024 PTASP with updated performance targets to meet FTA
requirements per 49 CFR Part 673. The PTASP is a risk and performance-based plan
utilizing Safety Management System principles to describe safety processes and guide
the Authority’s activities in such areas as emergency preparedness, hazard reporting and
management, safety training, and the promotion of safety to maintain a positive safety
culture. The PTASP contains a requirement for annual updates and subsequent
approvals from the Authority’s Board of Trustees.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
4.0 DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will enable the Authority to comply with 49
CFR Part 673.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: Failure to adopt the resolution will result in failure to satisfy FTA's
approval requirements which could cause the Authority to be out of compliance with
grantee requirements and affect current and future funding.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Rejection of the resolution would impact and delay compliance with
FTA reguilations.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: The PTASP was discussed by the Audit, Safety Compliance &
Real Estate Committee at the December 5, 2023 Board of Trustees meeting. The
Committee reviewed and referred the PTASP resolution to the full Board of Trustees for
approval. ltis recommended that the resolution be approved to satisfy FTA’s
requirements.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with the
Procurement requirements.

Lol sz

7/ General Manager, ChiefExecutivs Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-101

APPROVAL OF THE AUTHORITY’S 2024 PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
AGENCY SAFETY PLAN (“PTASP”)

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has been granted the power and authority, pursuant
to Chapter 306 of the Ohio Revised Code, to manage and conduct the affairs of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“the Authority”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority’s 2024 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (“PTASP”)
will replace the Authority’'s 2023 PTASP; and

WHEREAS, under federal regulation, 49 CFR Part 673, the Federal Transit
Administration (“FTA") has set forth requirements and guidelines for a PTASP; and

WHEREAS, as set forth in the regulation, the Authority’s governing board is required to
review and approve each transit agency’s annual PTASP; and

WHEREAS, the Authority’s PTASP Labor Management Safety Committee prepared the
2024 PTASP as a joint committee comprised equally of management and labor representatives;
and

WHEREAS, on December 15, 2023, the PTASP was emailed {o all members of the
Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS, on November 20, 2023, the Authority’s PTASP Labor Management Safety
Committee unanimously signed the 2024 PTASP; and

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2023, the Audit, Safety Compliance & Real Estate
Committee considered the PTASP and recommended approval to the full Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the Authority’s 2024 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan
(“PTASP”), which is in the form of the attachment hereto, is approved, and the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to submit the PTASP to the Ohio
Department of Transportation for adoption and approval.

Section 2. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment: 2024 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (“PTASP").

Adopted: December 19, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



. Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Rev. Charles P. Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
Date: December 14, 2023
Subject: Property Insurance Renewal — Updated Renewal Negotiations

As you recall at the December 5, 2023, Audit, Safety, Compliance and Real Estate Committee
meeting, Judy Lincoln gave a presentation regarding our Property Insurance Renewal. At that
time, Liberty Mutual quoted a 13% rate increase over the expiring premium. However, since
then, GCRTA'’s property insurance broker, AON, has negotiated Liberty down to a 10.2% rate
increase ($24,266 premium reduction).

Thus, our new grand total cost is $1,469,243, which is a premium increase of $137,106 vs the
expiring premium of $1,332,137. Lastly, we are now 11% below our budgeted amount of
$1,653,000.

The attached resolution contains our updates and recommendation to renew with Liberty Mutual
and Evanston Insurance Company for the period January 1, 2024 to January 1, 2025 as well as
further detail on the decision made. We thank our partners, Liberty Mutual and Evanston, for
recognizing our commitment to risk improvement.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday’s
meeting.

IBT/JLL



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PURCHASE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE FROM 2023-102
LIBERTY MUTUAL AND EVANSTON INSURANCE Date:
COMPANY December 14, 2023
VENDOR:  AON RISK SERVICES NORTHEAST, INC. Initiator:
Risk Management
AMOUNT:  NTE $1,469,243.00 FOR A PERIOD OF 12 MONTHS Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment 0O Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will provide the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) with insurance to protect the physical assets of the Authority for a period of twelve
(12) months.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority requires all-risk property insurance to protect
its physical assets in case of fire, explosion, windstorm, and similar perils. The current property
insurance policy expires January 1, 2024. The detailed results of efforts to renew the property
insurance programs were summarized in the presentation made to the Board of Trustees on

December 5, 2023.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Authority carries an all-risk property insurance policy
which protects the Authority’s physical assets from fire, windstorm, explosion, and similar
perils. Incumbent Carriers are Liberty Mutual and Evanston Insurance Company for two
separate programs with a Total Insured Value of $1.9 billion:

* The first program is written by Liberty Mutual and is for the coverage of all GCRTA real
and personal property, including rolling stock when garaged. The blanket limit is $500
million with a deductible of $250,000.00.

+ The second program is a stand-alone Rolling Stock policy written by Evanston
Insurance Company, which provides coverage for GCRTA rolling stock when rolling
(both rail and bus). The blanket limit is $25 million with a deductible of $500,000.00.

Last year in 2022 we continued to face hard market conditions and rate increases due to
severe industry loss experience, as well as inflationary pressures and undervaluation of
reported values in the industry, which required significant increases to insured values.
Those two factors combined resulted in a final premium increase of approximately 12% last
year. Our expiring premium is $1,332,137.00.

To provide some perspective on the commercial property insurance market in 2023, national
average rates increased 13.9% in the first quarter, increasing to 25.5% in the second quarter.
In the third quarter, there was some market improvement and national averages were down
to approximately 13% rate increases as of the end of Q3. The continued rate increases are
largely a result of continued poor loss experience, due mainly to the Florida wind storms and
hurricanes as well as severe convective storms.

Our property insurance brokers approached a number of competitive insurance markets this
year, but the most favorable outcome continues to result from the current program structure
with the two incumbent carriers described above.

After receiving the results of the marketing and negotiation efforts, Liberty Mutual quoted a
10.2% rate increase. Evanston Insurance Company quoted a 2.3% rate increase.




Staff Summary & Comments 2023-102
Property Insurance Renewal
Page 2

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

After applying these rates against updated total insured values (TIV), the resulting premium is
$1,469,243.00, an increase of $137,106.00 or approximately 10.3%. This encompasses both
the rate and insured value increases. The Authority is pleased to report that this amount is
$183,757.00.00 or 11.1% below the budgeted amount of $1,653,000.00.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This insurance policy will be funded through the General Fund, Risk
Management Department budget, payable with 2024 funds (contingent upon Board approval
of the 2024 Operating Budget), for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,469,243.00 for the
twelve (12) month period beginning January 1, 2024.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer will leave the Authority without
property insurance, putting substantial assets of the Authority at risk.

RECOMMENDATION: This property insurance program was discussed by the Board of
Trustees at the December 5, 2023 Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee
meeting. It is recommended that the submittal of the underwriters, through Aon Risk Services
Northeast, Inc., be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer to purchase the property insurance policies.

ATTACHMENTS: None.
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

fﬁcer

ager, Chief Exé&cuti




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-102

AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE FROM LIBERTY
MUTUAL AND EVANSTON INSURANCE COMPANY, THROUGH AON RISK
SERVICES NORTHEAST, INC., FOR A PERIOD OF TWELVE (12) MONTHS FOR A
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,469,243.00 (GENERAL FUND,
RISK MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) requires
property insurance to protect its physical assets; and

WHEREAS, proposals from various underwriters have been received and were
evaluated in accordance with the Authority’s Policies and Procedures; and

WHEREAS, the submittal of a group of underwriters through Aon Risk Services
Northeast, Inc., located at 950 Main Avenue, Suite 1600, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, to provide
property insurance coverage for a period of twelve (12) months, commencing on January 1,
2024, was received and, after negotiations, an amount not to exceed $1,469,243.00 for the
twelve (12) month period was agreed upon; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the acceptance of the
submittal of various underwriters, through Aon Risk Services Northeast, Inc. for a property
insurance program, to be the most advantageous to the Authority and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ghio:

Section 1. That the submittal of a group of underwriters, through Aon Risk Services
Northeast, Inc., as modified by negotiations, to provide a property insurance program for a
period of twelve (12) months is hereby accepted as the most advantageous to the Authority,
price and all other factors considered.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Aon Risk Services Northeast, Inc. for the
purchase of property insurance coverages from Liberty Mutual and Evanston Insurance
Company, and with such other carriers as the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may
deem appropriate, to provide property insurance coverage up to the limit of $500,000.00 per
occurrence from January 1, 2024 to January 1, 2025 at premiums not to exceed $1,469,243.00.

Section 3. This insurance program shall be payable out of the General Fund, Risk
Management Department budget, payable with 2024 funds (contingent upon Board approval of
the 2024 Operating Budget), for a total amount not to exceed $1,469,243.00 for the twelve (12)
month period beginning January 1, 2024.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding; compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements; and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.



Resolution No. 2023-102
Page 2

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 19, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2023-103
APPROVING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT Date:
AUTHORITY’'S FISCAL YEAR 2024 BUDGET December 14, 2023

Initiator: Office of
Management &
Budget

ACTION REQUEST:

Approval 0O Review/Comment o Information Only © Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0
5.0

6.0

7.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize an appropriations budget for Fiscal Year
(“FY”) 2024 (“FY 2024 Budget”) for the operation of the transit system, including required
fund transfers for the funds established by Chapter 460 of the Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Funds”).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: FY 2024 Budget begins January 1, 2024 and ends
December 31, 2024.

The process for developing the FY 2024 Budget began in July 2023 with the adoption of the
FY 2024 Tax Budget. It also involved extensive staff analysis and preparation as well as a
presentation to the Board’s Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee on November
14, 2023. A second presentation was made on December 5, 2023. One public hearing was
held on November 14, 2023, and a second public hearing was held on December 5, 2023 to
discuss the FY 2024 Budget. The budget and fund transfers proposed for adoption herein
represent GCRTA'’s spending plans forkFY 2024,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The FY 2024 Budget totals $333,845,575. It includes salaries, overtime,
payroll taxes, and fringe benefit resources to fund 2,423 FTE positions. This cost is based
on the Management and Non-Bargaining Salary Structure approved by the Board through
Resolution No. 2022-112 on December 20, 2022, as updated by staff in Attachment 1 to this
resolution. Adoption of this budget will fulfill GCRTA’s legal and managerial requirements to
establish the revenues and expenditures for the operation of GCRTA’s public transit system.
The 2024 Capital Improvement Budget was approved by the Board of Trustees through
Resolution No. 2023-040 on May 16, 2023.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The proposed FY 2024 Budget provides for spending $333,845,575
on estimated revenues of $335,447,051. The projected beginning balance for 2024 is
$22,025,630. The projected year-end balance of $23,627,106 will provide the operating
reserve required by Section 460.02(c)(2) of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.

ALTERNATIVES: Modify the proposed FY 2024 Budget by adding or subtracting
expenditures or revenues for specific activities, positions, or programs.



Staff Summary & Comments
2024 Budget
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: The proposed FY 2024 Budget has been reviewed by the
Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee and is recommended for adoption. It is
recommended that the Board approve the proposed FY 2024 Budget, fund transfers, and
budgets for the Funds as proposed herein.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS:

General Fund Balance Analysis

Financial Policy Goals

Budgeted Positions by Division

Capital Improvement Fund Balance Analysis
Bond Retirement Fund Balance Analysis
Insurance Fund Balance Analysis
Supplemental Pension Fund

Law Enforcement Fund Balance Analysis
Reserve Fund Balance Analysis

2024 Funds Budget Summary

STIEGMMOOW>

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form, and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.

e
A y QO
%eral Manager, Chief Exéeutive Officer




Attachment A

General Fund Balance Analysis

Revenues
Operating Revenues
Passenger Fares
Advertising & Concessions
Naming Rights
Investment Income
Total Operating Revenues
Non-Operating Revenues
Sales & Use Tax
Reimbursed Expenditures
Other Revenue
Transfer from Reserve Fund - Revenue Stabilization
Total Non-Operating Revenues
Total Revenues
Expenditures
Operating Expenditures
Salaries & Overtime
Payroll Taxes & Fringes
Fuel (Diesel, CNG, Propulsion Power, Propane, Gasoline)
Utilities
Inventory
Services, Materials & Supplies
Purchased Transportation
Other Expenditures
Total Operating Expenditures
Revenues less Operating Expenses
Transfers to Other Funds
Transfers to/from Insurance Fund
Transfers to/from Reserve Fund
Transfers to/from Capital
Transfers to/from Bond Retirement Fund
Transfers to/from Capital Improvement Fund
Total Transfes to/from Capital
Total Transfers to/from Other Funds
Total Expenditures
Net Increase (Decrease)
Beginning Balance
Projected Ending Balance

# Months Reserves - Estimated

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026
Budget Plan Plan

$ 27,100,000 $ 27,650,000 $ 28,200,000
2,061,751 2,061,751 2,061,751
485,300 485,300 485,300
1,000,000 700,000 600,000
30,647,051 30,897,051 31,347,051
268,300,000 273,650,000 279,100,000
5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
30,000,000 35,000,000 34,300,000
304,800,000 315,150,000 319,900,000
335,447,051 346,047,051 351,247,051
164,283,362 173,584,980 175,496,000
57,564,329 60,747,498 61,423,600
9,683,400 9,780,234 9,878,036
3,964,200 4,003,842 4,043,880
13,000,000 13,000,000 13,000,000
25,938,982 26,068,677 26,199,020
11,533,644 11,591,312 11,649,269
7,669,043 7,676,712 7,684,389
293,636,960 306,453,255 309,374,195
41,810,091 39,593,796 41,872,856
2,500,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
10,878,615 6,378,615 10,878,615
9,346,959 9,184,042 7,134,061
17,483,041 18,180,958 20,775,939
26,830,000 27,365,000 27,910,000
40,208,615 36,743,615 41,788,615
333,845,575 343,196,870 351,162,810
1,601,476 2,850,181 84,241
22,025,630 23,627,106 26,477,287
$ 23,627,106 $ 26,477,287 $ 26,561,528
1.0 1.0 1.0



%001

%001

%00€

%06 - %6L

*$140JJ9 uoisuedxa
pue $19sse SuisiXa JO BOUBUIIUIBLL UBBMIDY
doue|ed [eand e salinbaa weuSoud [eudes ayy

uoisuedx3y
01 9oueusjuiey jeyide)

%01

%01

%01

%0T <

‘syuswAed 3s1au8s 1gap oddns

0] pun4 1uswWalIley puog ay3 03 Jo sypafoud
ps1e8png moddns 03 pund Juswaaosdu jerden
3yl 01 Aj302.1p Pa31ed0||e Bg 0} SBNUBAD Xe] S3|EeS

lende)
0} UoORNLIIUOY XB| SBjeS

78S

144%

€9

"3g9p Buipueisino
uo syuawAed jedpuud pue 31sa19jui jenuUR
199w 031 Ajljiqe s,Aloyiny 2yl Jo aunseaw sy

28e1an07) 921MB6 1ga(

Aduapiyyg [ende)d

0T

0T

yiuow 1 <

sasuadxa JO sanusAdl Uj
SuoIIENIINY} AJBUIPIORIIXD JO USDSION JBAOD O
sasuadxa Supesado s,yuow auo aaoge Jo |enb3

{syiuow) ansasay Sunesado

%0'T

%V'v

%9'S

%8¢
uoneju| jo aley >

uollejjut Jo 914 3Y3} MO|3(] IO
1e1dey 8q 03 ueaA Jowd ayy 03 pasedwod ‘(unoy
19d 150D) 921A49S JO 1UN e SULIBAYBP JO 350D

Jeap Jad yiwoun

79691

€0'891

66°091

SINOH 3IIAJIS |B10]
Ag papialp (1oge| JUno22E 32104 $$8]) sasuadxy
SuniessdQ |e30l "Adua(1y43 3DIAIBS JO BINSEIIN

INOH dIAIBS 12d 150D

%C 0T

%101

%507

%G <

ANUBAIY JBY310 ‘Buioduy

JUBWISAAU ‘SIYBIY Sulwey ‘SU0ISSaIU0D)

9 BUISIBAPY ‘Saie4 Ja8uassed apnjoul
sanuanay Buijesadp -sasuadxy Sunetsdo

Aq papinip sanuanay SuneladQ ‘sanuanal
uniado o1 sasuadxa Bupesado Buedwod Ag
1uswadeuew Jo AdUdIDI3 BYI SMOUS 1By} onleY

oney Sunesado

Aduapiy3 Sunesado

ueld
9¢0C Ad

uejd
S20Z Ad

323png
20T Ad

Ie0H

s|jeoo Adijod |eldueuid

g Juswydeny




Attachment C

2024 Budgeted Positions by Division

Positions

Division FY 2023 FY 2024 Variance
Operations Division 2,118.5 2,132.5 14.0
Finance Division 93.0 97.0 4.0
Engineering & Project Management Division 28.0 30.0 2.0
Legal Affairs Division 43.0 43.0 -
Human Resources Division 62.0 67.0 5.0
Executive Division 29.0 30.0 1.0
Administration & External Affairs Division 23.0 23.0 -

Total Positions 2,397 2,423 26



Attachment D

Capital Improvement Fund Balance Analysis

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026
Budget Plan Plan
Revenues
Federal / State Revenues
Federal Capital Grants $ 71,876,582 S 72,393,400 S 48,219,950
State Capital Grants 41,116,997 66,345,747 45,170,747
Total Federal / State Revenues 112,993,579 138,739,147 93,390,697
Other Revenue
Investment Income 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,100,000
Other Revenue 26,520,794 34,500,000 25,000,000
Total Other Revenue 27,620,794 35,600,000 26,100,000
Transfers
Transfer from General Fund 17,483,041 18,180,958 20,775,939
Transfer from Reserve Fund 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Total Transfers 27,483,041 28,180,958 30,775,939
Total Revenue 168,097,414 202,520,105 150,266,636
Expenditures
Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay - Development Fund 142,245,993 173,495,767 145,965,697
Asset Maintenance 2,310,000 2,410,000 2,310,000
Routine Capital 1,718,921 1,627,524 1,636,353
Total Capital Outlay 146,274,914 177,533,291 149,912,050
Total Expenditures 146,274,914 177,533,291 149,912,050
Net Increase (Decrease) 21,822,500 24,986,814 354,586
Beginning Balance 300,928,668 345,519,548 370,506,362

Projected Ending Balance $ 322,751,168 S 370,506,362 $ 370,860,948




Attachment E
Bond Retirement Fund Balance Analysis

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026
Budget Plan Plan
Revenues
Transfers
Transfer from the General Fund $ 9,346,959 S 9,184,042 S 7,134,061
Total Transfers 9,346,959 9,184,042 7,134,061
Other Revenues
Investment Income 100,000 100,000 100,000
Total Other Revenues 100,000 100,000 100,000
Total Revenues 9,446,959 9,284,042 7,234,061
Expenditures
Debt Service
Principal 7,995,000 8,355,000 6,935,000
interest 1,481,450 1,115,500 697,750
Total Debt Service 9,476,450 9,470,500 7,632,750
Other Expenditures
Other Expenditures 1,500 1,500 1,500
Total Other Expenditures 1,500 1,500 1,500
Total Expenditures 9,477,950 9,472,000 7,634,250
Net Increase (Decrease) (30,991) (187,958) {400,189)
Beginning Balance 1,117,638 1,086,647 898,689

Projected Ending Balance S 1,086,647 S 898,689 $ 498,500




Attachment F

Insurance Fund Balance Analysis

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026
Budget Plan Plan
Revenues
Transfer from General Fund $ 2,500,000 $ 3,000,000 S 3,000,000
Investment Income 100,000 100,000 50,000
Total Revenues 2,600,000 3,100,000 3,050,000
Expenditures
Claims and Premium Outlay 3,078,000 3,100,000 3,100,000
Total Expenditures 3,078,000 3,100,000 3,100,000
Net Increase (Decrease) (478,000) - (50,000)
Beginning Balance 6,579,653 6,101,653 6,101,653

Projected Ending Balance S 6,101,653 $ 6,101,653 § 6,051,653




Attachment G

Supplemental Pension Fund Balance Analysis

Revenues
Investment income
Total Revenues
Expenditures
Benefit Payments
Total Expenditures
Net Increase (Decrease)
Beginning Balance
Projected Ending Balance

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026
Budget Plan Plan
S 40,000 S 30,000 S 30,000
40,000 30,000 30,000
9,000 9,000 9,000
9,000 9,000 9,000
31,000 21,000 21,000
1,397,563 1,428,563 1,449,563
$ 1,428,563 $ 1,449,563 $ 1,470,563




Attachment H
Law Enforcement Fund Balance Analysis

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026
Budget Plan Plan
Revenues
Law Enforcement Revenue S 20,000 $ 15,000 S 15,000
Investment Income 5,000 5,000 5,000
Total Revenues 25,000 20,000 20,000
Expenditures
Capital & Related Expenditures 25,000 25,000 25,000
Total Expenditures 25,000 25,000 25,000
Net Increase (Decrease) - {5,000) (5,000)
Beginning Balance 121,864 121,864 116,864

Projected Ending Balance S 121,864 $ 116,864 $ 111,864




Attachment |

Reserve Fund Balance Analysis

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026
Budget Plan Plan
Revenues
Transfers
Transfer from GF for Rolling Stock Reserve S 10,000,000 S 10,000,000 S 10,000,000
Transfer from GF for 27th Pay 878,615 878,615 878,615
Total Transfers 10,878,615 10,878,615 10,878,615
Other Revenue
Investment Income 4,000,000 3,000,000 2,000,000
Total Other Revenue 4,000,000 3,000,000 2,000,000
Total Revenues 14,878,615 13,878,615 12,878,615
Expenditures
Transfers )
Transfer to RTA Development Fund for Rolling Stock Reserve 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Transfer to GF for 27th Pay - 4,500,000 -
Transfer to GF for Revenue Stabilization 30,000,000 35,000,000 34,300,000
Total Transfers 40,000,000 49,500,000 44,300,000
Total Expenditures 40,000,000 49,500,000 44,300,000
Net Increase {Decrease) (25,121,385) {35,621,385) (31,421,385)
Beginning Balance 157,185,686 132,064,301 96,442,916
132,064,301 $ 96,442,916 $ 65,021,531

Projected Ending Balance $




lzog“t8t'280 $ TOE'Y90°ZEL $ v9sIzl $ €95'8evT $  €S9'T0T9 $ _Lv9'980°T S L8L'VS6Y $ IBE96LLTE S 90T'4e9'ET $ 3ougjeg Suipul sjqejieny|
T0L'9SE'68Y 989°SBTLST v9B1ZT £95°L6E'T £59°6£59 8E9'LITT £99°006°S T00'820'S62 0£9'570'22 aduejeg Juiuuidag
(00%'5£1°2) (S8€'TT1'ST) - 000'TE {000°8£y) (166'0€) (088°5v6) OBE'B9L'TT 9/b'T09'T (2seaudag) ases.ou) 19N
| vz8os'zSy 000'000°0Y 000'SZ. 0006 000'8£0'€ 0S6°2LY°'6 TZ6'82S'8T €66'SYZ'EYT SLS'SYB'EEE saimpuadx3 jejol}
000'000°0V 000°00S'vT SI9'80Z'0V Spung 2yl 03 si3jsues] je10L
000'000°0¢ UoHBZIIELS BNUBASY JO4
519848 Aed YLz dog
doo‘aooar 000'000°0% an1253Y %2035 Bull|0Y Jod
pund aaJasay 03 Jojsuely
000°005'pT punj 1uawdo[aA3Q V1Y 01 J3jsues]
; . pung |eyde] yiy 0} Jajsues|
: mmm.m«m & pund Juswaliay puog 01 1ajsuei}
00070052 pung 8dueJnsuj 03 Jajsuel |
pun4 [BJ3UIYH 0) Jajsuel]
spung 19y3Q 03 s1agsued)
{00b'5L1°T) S19'848'vT - 000'TE {000'84p) (166°0£} 0CT'YSS'ET 08£°89£'2 160°018'TY saampuadxy ss3| sanuansy
Ye810S¢Sy 000'sZ 000'6 000'8£0°€ 0S6'44Y°6 126820 £66°SYZTYT 096°9€9°€6C s2inyipuadxg |e301-Gng
¥98'v98'8ST 000'SZ 0006 000°8L0°E 0S6°LLY'6 126'820'Y £66°SYZ'TYT - sainypuadx3y unesado-uon jerog
00S'ETT'E 000'sT 000'6 0008L0°€ 005’7 saunyipuadxg J8yi0
0St'8LY's 0SP'9LY'6 (3s8u23u) 3 jedidulId) 931AI3S 193
[443 784149 126820y £66'SPTTYT Aepno jended
sainpuadx3 unessdo-uon
096'9€9€6Z 096'9£9°€6¢ saunjipuadxg Sunesad jeio]
EV0'699°L £90'699°L sainypuadxl 48Y0
PY9EESTT PH9EES'TT uoneyodsuel} paseyding
786'8€6'SC 786'8E6'ST s31)ddng g sjel1e ‘5921AI85
000°000°€T 000°000'ST Asozuanuy
00T'v96'¢€ 007'p96's sanyan
0ov'€89'6 00b’€89°'6 (auljosen ‘auedoud
‘1amogd uoisindold ‘OND ‘jesaiq) (and
67E'V9SLS 67E'PS5LS saBull4 g saXe ||oJAed
T9E'E8T' V9T T9E'E8TYIT BWIBAQ 1 saileles
sasnipuadxg Bunesado
saanjpuadxy
~ Yev'9zE'osy S19'848'V1 000'sz 0000y 000°009'Z 656°9YY°6 IVO'ERS LT £LE'PTIOSOT ISO'LYY'SEE sanuansy .So._._
S19'8£8°0T - - 000'005C 6S6°9VE’S TYO'E8Y LT 000°005'vZ 000°000°0€ Slajsuel] (€30}
000°000°0¢ UONEZI|IGRIS BnUBA3Y J0]
2A1353Y %0035 Buljjoy Jod
pun4 aa19s9y WoJj Jajsuel ]
000'005 7T pung jeuded w1y Wody 1ajsuel)
ST9'8£8°01T 00070057 pSElave's puny {B13UBD WOoUy J3ysuel]
stajsuel|
ELEVEE'VTY 000'0Z ELE'VIS'GET 000008'vLT sanuanay JunesadQ-uoN jeloy
v6L'0v0'8T 00007 ¥6£'075'97 000'005°1 anusAay 13430
L66'9TT'TY 166911y 3je1s
785'9£8'TL 785°9/8'TL |esopad
000'000°S 000°000°S saIN}puUsdX3 pasInguIIay
000'00€'89¢ 000'00€'89C Xe| asn g s3fes
sanusAaay Buneisdp-uoN
150'266'SE 000000y 000°S 00001 000°001 000001 000°00T 000°000°T 1S0°Ly9'0E sanuaa3y Jupesado [er0L
000's¥E's 000°000"y $ 000's $ 000'Op $ 000001 $ 000°00T $ 000001 $  000'000T S 000°000'T BLUOU| JU3UWIS3AY|
00£'58Y 00£°58Y 5343y Bunwen
TSL'T90T 154190 SUDISSOUOD B BulSILBAPY
000°00T°LZ $ 000°00T'LT $ saleq ;pduassed
sanuaAdy 3unessdo
sanuaaay
: SANNS TVLIdYD

SANNL G3LO1LSIY

Arewrwuns 198png spun4 $z20¢

[IU=sWiyoelly



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-103

MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CURRENT EXPENSES AND OTHER
EXPENDITURES FOR THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY DURING FISCAL YEAR 2024

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (‘GCRTA”) has both a
legal and managerial requirement to establish the revenues to be received for the upcoming
fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other types of revenues, as well as estimates of all
expenditures or outlays for the operation of its public transportation system in the fiscal year
(“FY") to be paid or met from said revenue; and

WHEREAS, in order to meet those requirements, a budget for GCRTA'’s operations for
the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2024 and ending December 31, 2024 (“FY 2024 Budget”)
was prepared; and

WHEREAS, the FY 2024 Budget has been made available for public inspection for at
least ten (10) days by having at least two (2) copies thereof on file in the GCRTA Office of
Management and Budget and a copy posted on GCRTA’s web site; and

WHEREAS, the FY 2024 Budget is based on the Management and Non-Bargaining
Salary Structure approved on December 20, 2022 by the Board of Trustees in Resolution No.
2022-112, which remains unchanged as set forth in Attachment 1; and

WHEREAS, the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee of the Board of
Trustees discussed the FY 2024 Budget on November 14, 2023 and December 5, 2023, and
public hearings were held on November 14, 2023 and December 5, 2023, with public notices
given by publication in the Cleveland Plain Dealer and the Call & Post on October 26, 2023 and
October 29, 2023, as well as by posting of notice in the first floor lobby of the GCRTA Main
Office Building and on GCRTA’s Facebook and Twitter pages.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. The GCRTA Board of Trustees hereby sets aside and appropriates the
following current expenses and other expenditures during FY 2024

Operations Division

Paratransit District - S 27,928,673
Rail District o 25,464,153 |
Asset & Configuration Management , ‘ 923,144
Transit Police - - 17,434,492
‘Service Management ; 9,930,015
Power & Way ; ; . 15,650,397 :

~ Service Quality Management : 7,926,318 .
_Fleet Management 36,473,876
Brunswick Pass-Thru o - 1 600,000
Hayden District - . 48,371,230

~ Triskett District , ; 37,131,273 ¢

_ Information Technology B ; 10,207,874

Total Operations Division ; , 238,041,445



Resolution No. 2023-103

Page 2

Finance Division : . :
Office of Business Development o 548,563
Accounting B o 4,129,073

~ Management Information Services ‘ . 3,753,841
SupportServices . 1271721
Procurement ; o - - 1,872,452'
Revenue , ' 2,259,189
Office of Management & Budget - 9,310,543
Total Finance Division ; ‘ 23,145,382 .

Engineering & Projéct Management Division

Project Support o ' 388,476
Programming & Planning 3,106,708
~ Engineering & Project Development 2,381,124
Total Engineering & Project Management Division . 5,876,308

Legal Affairs Division ‘ o ;
Safety T oo 1,050,539

Legal ; ‘ 4,280,742
Risk Management ; B 5,293,915
Total Legal Affairs Division - ; 10,625,196

Human Resources Division

'Human Resources ‘ k » 2,116,17'8“;
~ Labor & Employee Relations - 2,336,015
~Training & Employee Development N o 4,790,258

Total Human Resources Division ‘ 9,242,451

Executive Division

Executive , , - 1,379,168
Secretary/Treasurer - Board of Trustees . — 404,840
internal Audit ; : 1,010,594
Fund Transfers S o , 40,208,615
Total Executive Division - . 43,003,217

Administration & External Affairs Division , ‘ ;
Administration & External Affairs 3,911,576

~ Total Administration & External Affairs Divisioh ; 3,911,576

Total General Fund B'udget‘ ) ‘ ’ ©$ 333,845,575




Resolution No. 2023-103

Page 3

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

(Resolution No. 2023-040, approved on May 16, 2023)

Construction and Acquisition of
Transit Facilities and Equipment

BOND RETIREMENT FUND

Debt Service — Principal
Debt Service — Interest
Other

INSURANCE FUND

Claims & Premium Outlay

SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION FUND

Benefits Payments

LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND

Safety & Security Training
Capital & Related Items

RESERVE FUND

Transfers to General Fund
Transfers to RTA Development Fund

CUMULATED APPROPRIATIONS
General Fund
Capital Improvement Funds
Bond Retirement Fund
Insurance Fund
Supplemental Pension Fund
Law Enforcement Fund

Reserve Fund

$146,274,914

$7,995,000
1,481,450
1,500

$3,078,000

$9,000

$25,000
0

$30,000,000
10,000,000

$333,845,575
146,274,914
9,477,950
3,078,000
9,000

25,000

40,000,000



Resolution No. 2023-103
Page 4

Section 2. That transfers of funds may be made in the FY 2024 Budget from one
division to another, or from one department to another, or from one line item to another, or from
one of the funds established by Chapter 460 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (‘Fund”) to another, as long as the total
appropriation in the Fund is not exceeded and transfers of funds is reported to the Board within
thirty (30) days after the end of the month in which said transfer occurred.

Section 3. As part of this appropriation, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
is granted the authority to upgrade or downgrade positions within GCRTA, provided that the
total number of positions approved in the budget is not exceeded. Furthermore, the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer may transfer positions from one department to another so
long as the total number of positions approved in the budget does not exceed 2,423 full-time
equivalent (FTE) positions.

Section 4. That the budget includes an appropriation of funds for coffee, meals,
refreshments, and other amenities for employees or other persons in furtherance of official
business of GCRTA, and such expenditures are hereby determined to be for a public purpose.

Section 5. That the FY 2024 Budget may, from time to time, be amended and
additional monies received in FY 2024, if applicable, may be appropriated.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment 1 — GCRTA 2024 Management & Non-Bargaining Salary Structure

Adopted: December 19, 2023
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Attachment 1

Min
$131,701.39
$118,864.07
$107,472.04

$97,347.86
$88,337.44
$80,306.76
$73,139.13
$66,732.78
$60,998.89
$55,859.79
$51,247 .51
$47,102.49
$43,372.46
$40,011.49
$36,979.20
$34,240.00

Mid
$164,626.74
$148,580.09

- $134,340.05

$121,684.82
$110,421.80
$100,383.46
$91,423.91
$83,415.98
$76,248.61
$69,824.73
$64,059.39
$58,878.11
$54,215.57
$50,014.37
$46,224.00
$42,800.00

Max
$204,137.16
$184,239.31
$166,581.66
$150,889.18
$136,923.03
$124,475.48
$113,365.65
$103,435.81

$94 548.27
$86,582.67
$79,433.64
$73,008.86
$67,227.31
$62,017.82
$57,317.76
$53,072.00



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 o
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

2023-104
AMENDING CHAPTER 465 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE OF THE CODIFIED | Date.

RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL | pocember 14. 2023
TRANSIT AUTHORITY '

Initiator:
Legal

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [ Review/Comment O Information Only O Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will amend Chapter 465 Financial Assistance of the Codified
Rules and Regulations (*Code Book”) of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”).

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees were
codified in 1989, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176. The Code Book is undergoing a
comprehensive review and update so that the Code Book will conform to the current structure and
operations of the Authority.

Chapter 465 provides authority to apply for federal, state and NOACA-administered grants. The
Authority’s practice has been to periodically bring resolutions to the Board for authority to apply for
grants, which duplicates the authority already present in the Code Book. Both the State of Ohio
and NOACA have approved the proposed amendments and approved of using Code Book Chapter
465 in support of GCRTA’s grant applications.

The proposed amendments will streamline the process of applying for grants because it will
eliminate the need to periodically bring resolutions to the Board for authority to apply for ODOT and

NOACA grants.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

40 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will streamline the process of applying for grants.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution will cause the Authority
to continue to bring all ODOT and NOACA grant application resolutions before the Board rather
than streamlining the grant application process.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the December 5, 2023 Committee of the
Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board of Trustees. Itis
recommended that this resolution be adopted.

9.0 ATTACHMENT: A. Red-line of proposed amendments to Chapter 465 Financial Assistance

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds Iegal form and conformance with the

Gerferal Manager, Chief Executive fﬂc




Staff Summary Attachment A

CHAPTER 465
Financial Assistance
465.01 Federal grant applications. 465.06 Funds Allocated by the
465.02 State grant applications. Northeast Ohio Areawide
465.03 Execution of grant Coordinating Agency
contracts. (“NOACA”)
465.04 Documents, reports 465-06465.07 Private grants.
and information. 465-04465.08 Authority of
Acting CEO-General
Manager/-Seeretary-

Treasurer, Chief
Executive Officer.

465.05 Acceptance and
expenditure of funds.

CROSS REFERENCES

Federal Grants (MAP-21) — see 49 U.S.C.A. Chapter 53

Requirements to receive Federalfederal grants — see 49 U.S.C. 5807(R) (1)

Borrowing from Federalfederal, Statestate, other governmental or private source
- see Ohio R.C. 306.35(J)

Grants from the United States, the State of Ohio, other governmental or private
sources — see Ohio R.C. 306.35(R)

Grants for assistance for elderly and disabled — see Ohio R.C.

5501.07(B)

Department of Internal Audit — see ADM. Ch. 260

Internal audit policies and procedures — see ADM. Ch. 262

Finance and-Administration-Division — see ADM. Ch. 286

Contracts and procurements — see FIN. Ch. 410

Debt policies — see FIN. Ch. 420

465.01 FEDERAL GRANT APPLICATIONS.
(a) Federal Grants.

(1) The €XO,—General Manager/SeeretaryTreasurer, Chief Executive
Officer may execute and file applications for Federalfederal
assistance on behalf of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority.

(2) The CEO,—General Manager/Seeretary-Treasurer, Chief Executive
Officer may execute and file with its applications, certifications and
assurances and other documents the awarding agency may require
for a Federal federal assistance grant or cooperating agreement.




(Res. 2007-165. Passed 11-20-07.)

$b)—(b) The CEO; General Manager/Seeretary-Treasurer, Chief

Executive Officer may submit grant applications to the State of Ohio
Department of Transportation, to provide for the State’s—state’s share of the
non-Federal—federal funds necessary for Federal-federal grant applications
executed and filed as provided for in subsection (a)(1) hereof, and State-state
funding for other eligible transit projects._

(Res. 1992-158. Passed 9-22-92.)( Res. 2016-69. Passed 8-16-16. Res. 2023- XXX.
Passed 12-19-23.)

465.02 STATE GRANT APPLICATIONS.
The CEO-General Manager/SeeretaryTreasurer, Chief Executive Officer may

submit—file grant applications, along with any necessary certifications_and
documentation, to the State of Ohio for State-state grant funds on behalf of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.

(Res. 1992-17. Passed 1-21-92; Res. 1992-158. Passed 9-22-92; Res. 1993-158.
Passed 9-21-93; Res. 2016-69. Passed 8-16-16.)

465.03 EXECUTION OF GRANT CONTRACTS.

(a) The €CXEO,—General Manager/Seeretary-Treasurer, Chief Executive
Officer may execute grant and cooperative agreements with awarding Federal
federal agencies on behalf of the Authority.

(b) The €EO;-General Manager/Seeretary-Treasurer, Chief Executive Officer
may execute grant contracts with the State of Ohio on behalf of the Authority.
(Res. 2016-69. Passed 8-16-16.)

465.04 DOCUMENTS, REPORTS AND INFORMATION.

(a) Information Required by the State of Ohio. The CEO,—General
Manager/SeeretaryTreasurer, Chief Executive Officer may furnish such additional
information, assurances or other documentation, execute any and all documents
or assurances and make such reports as is necessary and required by the State
of Ohio for State-state grant funds on behalf of the Authority.

(Res. 1992-17. Passed 1-21-92.)

(b) Information Required by the United States Government.

(1) The €EO,—General Manager/SeeretaryTreasurer, Chief Executive
Officer may execute and file assurances or other documents, and
furnish such additional information as the awarding Federal-federal
agencies may require in connection with Federal-federal grant
applications on behalf of the Authority.




(2) The €EO,—General Manager/Seeretary-Treasurer, Chief Executive
Officer may set forth and execute affirmative minority business
policies in connection with the procurement needs for projects
funded by Federal-federal grants.

(Res. 1993-156. Passed 9-21-93; Res. 2016-69. Passed 8-16-16.)

465.05 ACCEPTANCE AND EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS.

(a) The €XO-General Manager/Secretary-Treasurer, Chief Executive Officer
may accept Federalfederal funds from awarding Federalfederal agencies on behalf
of the Authority and expend such funds in accordance with applicable law,
regulations and grant agreements. (Res. 2007-165. Passed 11-20-07.)

(b) The €CEO,—General Manager/Seeretary-Treasurer, Chief Executive

Officer may accept and receive funds from the State of Ohio and expend the
same pursuant to the terms and conditions of corresponding grant contracts
with the State of Ohio. (Res. 1992-17. Passed 1-21-92.)

465.06 FUNDS ALLOCATED BY THE NORTHEAST OHIO AREAWIDE
COORDINATING AGENCY (“NOACA”)

(a) That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized
to file applications, as required, and to execute contracts, as required, on behalf of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority with the Northeast Ohio
Areawide Coordinating Agency ("NOACA") for financial assistance and capital
project programs (including transfer of highway funds) under all NOACA

programs.

(b) That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to
execute and file such applications, any assurances or any other documentation
required by NOACA under the financial assistance and capital project programs.

(¢) That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to
furnish such additional information as NOACA may require.

(d) That that the authority granted in subsections (a) — (¢) hereof 1is
conditioned upon an assessment by the General Manger, Chief Executive Officer
that (1) any required local match funds are available; (2) the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority is willing to provide the local match amount for any
funding awarded to it by NOACA and (3) the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit




Authority represents in writing to NOACA that it is willing to provide the local
match amount for any funding awarded to it by NOACA .

(e) That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to accept
the funds resulting from the NOACA financial assistance and capital programs.

465.01465.07 PRIVATE GRANTS.

The CEO;-General Manager/Seeretary-Treasurer, Chief Executive Officer is
hereby authorized to borrow or accept grants from private sources in accordance
with State law.

(Res. 2016-69. Passed 8-16-16.)

465.02465.08 AUTHORITY OF ACTING GENERAL MANAGER/
SECRETARY-TREASURER,CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER.

In the absence of the CEO,—General Manager/Seeretary-Treasurer, Chief
Executive Officer, the Acting CEO;-General Manager/SeeretaryTreasurer, Chief
Executive Officer of the Authority is hereby authorized to perform any and all of
the functions described in this chapter.

(Res. 1992-17. Passed 1-21-92; Res. 1992-157. Passed 9-22-92; Res. 1992-158.
Passed 9-22-92; Res. 2016-69. Passed 8-16-16.)




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-104
AMENDING CHAPTER 465 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE OF THE CODIFIED

RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees (“Board”) of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) codified the resolutions
establishing its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Chapter 465
Financial Assistance should be amended to streamline the process for applying for grants.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Code Book Chapter 465 Financial Assistance is hereby amended to
read as specified in Attachment A hereto.

Section 2. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment: A. Chapter 465 Financial Assistance

Adopted: December 19, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



465.01
465.02
465.03
465.04

465.05

465.06

Resolution Attachment A

CHAPTER 465
Financial Assistance

Federal grant applications. Northeast Ohio Areawide

State grant applications. Coordinating Agency
Execution of grant contracts. (‘NOACA”)
Documents, reports and 465.07 Private grants.
information. 465.08 Authorlty of ACtlng

General Manager,
Chief Executive
Officer.

Acceptance and
expenditure of funds.
Funds Allocated by the

CROSS REFERENCES

Federal Grants (MAP-21) — see 49 U.S.C.A. Chapter 53

Requirements to receive federal grants — see 49 U.S.C. 5807(R) (1)

Borrowing from federal, state, other governmental or private source - see Ohio
R.C. 306.35(J)

Grants from the United States, the State of Ohio, other governmental or private
sources — see Ohio R.C. 306.35(R)

Grants for assistance for elderly and disabled — see Ohio R.C.

5501.07(B)

Department of Internal Audit — see ADM. Ch. 260

Internal audit policies and procedures — see ADM. Ch. 262

Finance Division — see ADM. Ch. 286

Contracts and procurements — see FIN. Ch. 410

Debt policies — see FIN. Ch. 420

465.01 FEDERAL GRANT APPLICATIONS.
(a) Federal Grants.

(b)

(1) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may execute and file
applications for federal assistance on behalf of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority.

(2) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may execute and file
with its applications, certifications and assurances and other
documents the awarding agency may require for a federal
assistance grant or cooperating agreement. (Res. 2007-165. Passed

11-20-07.)

The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may submit grant

applications to the State of Ohio Department of Transportation, to provide for
the state’s share of the non-federal funds necessary for federal grant



applications executed and filed as provided for in subsection (a)(1) hereof, and
state funding for other eligible transit projects. (Res. 1992-158. Passed 9-22-92.
Res. 2016-69. Passed 8-16-16. Res. 2023- XXX. Passed 12-19-23.)

465.02 STATE GRANT APPLICATIONS.

The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may file grant applications,
along with any necessary certifications and documentation, to the State of Ohio for
state grant funds on behalf of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.
(Res. 1992-17. Passed 1-21-92; Res. 1992-158. Passed 9-22-92; Res. 1993-158.
Passed 9-21-93; Res. 2016-69. Passed 8-16-16.)

465.03 EXECUTION OF GRANT CONTRACTS.
(a) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may execute grant and
cooperative agreements with awarding federal agencies on behalf of the Authority.

(b) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may execute grant contracts
with the State of Ohio on behalf of the Authority.
(Res. 2016-69. Passed 8-16-16.)

465.04 DOCUMENTS, REPORTS AND INFORMATION.

(a) Information Required by the State of Ohio. The General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer may furnish such additional information, assurances or other
documentation, execute any and all documents or assurances and make such
reports as 1s necessary and required by the State of Ohio for state grant funds
on behalf of the Authority.

(Res. 1992-17. Passed 1-21-92))

(b) Information Required by the United States Government.

(1) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may execute and file
assurances or other documents, and furnish such additional
information as the awarding federal agencies may require in
connection with federal grant applications on behalf of the Authority.

(2) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may set forth and
execute affirmative minority business policies in connection with
the procurement needs for projects funded by federal grants.

(Res. 1993-156. Passed 9-21-93; Res. 2016-69. Passed 8-16-16.)

465.05 ACCEPTANCE AND EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS.

(a) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may accept federal funds
from awarding federal agencies on behalf of the Authority and expend such funds
in accordance with applicable law, regulations and grant agreements. (Res. 2007-
165. Passed 11-20-07.)



(b) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may accept and receive
funds from the State of Ohio and expend the same pursuant to the terms
and conditions of corresponding grant contracts with the State of Ohio. (Res.
1992-17. Passed 1-21-92.)

465.06 FUNDS ALLOCATED BY THE NORTHEAST OHIO AREAWIDE
COORDINATING AGENCY (“NOACA”)

(a) That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized
to file applications, as required, and to execute contracts, as required, on behalf of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority with the Northeast Ohio
Areawide Coordinating Agency ("NOACA") for financial assistance and capital
project programs (including transfer of highway funds) under all NOACA
programs.

(b) That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to
execute and file such applications, any assurances or any other documentation
required by NOACA under the financial assistance and capital project programs.

(¢) That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to
furnish such additional information as NOACA may require.

(d) That that the authority granted in subsections (a) — (c) hereof is
conditioned upon an assessment by the General Manger, Chief Executive Officer
that (1) any required local match funds are available; (2) the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority is willing to provide the local match amount for any
funding awarded to it by NOACA and (3) the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority represents in writing to NOACA that it is willing to provide the local
match amount for any funding awarded to it by NOACA .

(e) That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to accept
the funds resulting from the NOACA financial assistance and capital programs.

465.07 PRIVATE GRANTS.

The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to borrow
or accept grants from private sources in accordance with State law.
(Res. 2016-69. Passed 8-16-16.)

465.08 AUTHORITY OF ACTING GENERAL MANAGER,CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER.

In the absence of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer, the Acting
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority is hereby authorized to
perform any and all of the functions described in this chapter.

(Res. 1992-17. Passed 1-21-92; Res. 1992-157. Passed 9-22-92; Res. 1992-158.
Passed 9-22-92; Res. 2016-69. Passed 8-16-16.)



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 _
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

AMENDING CHAPTER 212 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION OF | Date:
THE CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER December 14. 2023
CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY :

. 2023-105

Initiator:
Legal

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment O Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0
5.0
6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will amend Chapter 212 Definitions and Interpretation of
the Codified Rules and Regulations (“Code Book”) of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit

Authority (“Authority™).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Policies and Procedures”) were codified in
1989, pursuant to Resolution 1989-176. The Code Book is undergoing a comprehensive
review and update so that the Code Book will conform to the current structure and operations
of the Authority.

In Resolution No. 2015-100, the Board of Trustees (“Board”) changed the name of the Policies
and Procedures to the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority.

The proposed amendment will amend Code Book Chapter 212 to update the references to the
old name of the Code Book to the new name.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will bring Chapter 212 up to date.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution would result in the
Code Book remaining out of date.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the December 5, 2023 Committee of
the Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board of Trustees. Itis
recommended that this resolution be adopted.

ATTACHMENT: A. Red-line of proposed amendments to Chapter 212 Definitions and
Interpretation

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requxrements

‘7General Manager Chlef%cu fficer




212.01
212.02
212.03

Staff Summary Attachment A

CHAPTER 212
Definitions and Interpretation
Definitions. 212.04 Construction of section
Rules of construction. references.
Revivor; effect of 212.05 Conflict of laws.
re-enactment, amendment or 212.06 Severability.
repeal. 212.07 Repeal.

CROSS REFERENCES

Urban mass transportation - see 49 U.S.C.A. 1601 et seq.
Urban Mass Transportation Administration, Department of

Transportation - see 49 C.F.R. Ch. VI

Regional transit authorities - see Ohie-R.C. 306.30 et seq.

Creation of regional transit authority - see Ohie-R.C. 306.31, 306.32

Rules and regulations of Board of Trustees - see Ohie-R.C. 306.34

Authority to adopt, amend and repeal bylaws - see Ohio-R.C. 306.35(D)

Dissolution of authority or modification of membership - see Ghio-R.C. 306.54

Penalty for violations of eeunty-transit-systemrules-andregulationsSection
306.35(D)(4) - see Ohie-R.C. 306.99(B)

Interpretation of Bylaws - see Bylaws Art. IX

Amendments and supplements - see ADM. 210.02

212.01 DEFINITIONS.
As used in these Policiesand ProceduresCodified Rules and Regulations of the
Board—oef Trustees—of the—Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, unless

otherwise expressly provided or the context otherwise requires:

(a)
(b)

(©)

(d)
(e)

(®

(g)
(h)
6))

"And" may be read "or," and "or" may be read "and," if the sense requires it.
"Authority" means the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority,
established pursuant to Ohie-R.C. 306.32.

"Board" means the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority, appointed as provided in Ohis-R.C. 306.33.

"County" means Cuyahoga County, Ohio.

"Land" and "real estate" include rights and easements of an incorporeal
nature."

Law" means any and all laws, including constitutions, statutes, ordinances,
resolutions, rules, regulations, motions and orders, of the United States, any
state, any political subdivision of a state, any municipal corporation or any
other legal entity.

"May" is permissive.

"Month" means a calendar month.

"Motion" means a legislative enactment of the Board of Trustees that is
recorded in the minutes of the Board but which is not separately published.



0)
(k)

@
(m)

(n)

(0)

(»)
(@)

(r)
(s)

(t)
(w)

V)

"Owner," when applied to property, includes a part owner, joint owner or
tenant in common of the whole or any part of such property.
"Person" means the State, a municipal corporation, a political subdivision, a
public or private corporation, an individual, a partnership, a firm, an
association, a business trust, an estate, a trust or any other entity.
"Premises," when used as applicable to property, extends to and includes land
and buildings.
"Property" includes real and personal property and any mixed and lesser
estates or interests therein. "Personal property" includes every kind of
property except real property; "real property" includes land, tenements and
hereditaments.
"Public place" means any place to or upon which the public resorts or travels,
whether such place is owned or controlled by a municipality, the State or the
United States, or any agency of the State or the United States, or is a place
to or upon which the public resorts or travels by custom or by invitation,
express or implied.
"Reasonable time" means such time only as may be necessary for the prompt
performance of an act or the giving of required notice.
"Residence" means an abode in which a person permanently resides.
"Resolution" means a legislative enactment of the Board of Trustees that is
separately published and recorded.
"Shall" is mandatory.
"Sidewalk" means that portion of a street between the curb lines or lateral
lines and the right-of-way lines, which is intended for the use of pedestrians.
"State" means the State of Ohio.
"Street," "highway" and "alley" mean the entire width subject to an easement
for public right of way, or owned in fee by a municipality, county or the State,
of every way or place, of whatever nature, whenever any part thereof is open
to the use of the public as a matter of right for purposes of public travel. The
word "alley" means any such way or place providing a secondary means of
ingress and egress from a property.
"Transit facility" means:

(1) A street railway, motor bus, tramline, subway, monorail, rapid

transit, aereplaneairplane, helicopter, ferry or other ground or water transportation
system having as its primary purpose the regularly scheduled mass movement of
passengers between locations within the territorial boundaries of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, including all rights of way, power lines, rolling
stock, equipment, machinery, terminals, buildings, administration and maintenance
and repair facilities, and supporting parking facilities, and franchise rights attendant
thereto, but excluding therefrom trucks and facilities designed for use in the movement
of property by truck;

(2) Docks, wharves, warehouses, piers and other port, terminal or

transportation facilities and marinas;

(3) Facilities used, available for use or designed for use to aid in the



safe taking off or landing of aircraft, for the safety, storage and maintenance of
aircraft, for the comfort and accommodation of users of air transportation, including
persons, property and mail, or for the safe and efficient operation and maintenance of
an airport, and buildings and facilities as are reasonably necessary for the comfort and
accommodation of the users of transit facilities; or
(4) Any combination of the foregoing.

(w) "Written" and "in writing" include any representation of words, letters or

figures, whether by printing or otherwise.

212.02 RULES OF CONSTRUCTION.

(a) Common and Technical Use. Words and phrases shall be read in context and
construed according to the rules of grammar and common usage. Words and phrases
that have acquired a technical or particular meaning, whether by legislative definition
or otherwise, shall be construed accordingly.

(b) Singular and Plural; Gender; Tense.
(1) The singular includes the plural, and the plural includes the
singular.
(2) Words of one gender include the other genders.
(3) Words in the present tense include the future.

(c) Computation of Time.

(1) The time within which an act is required by law to be done shall
be computed by excluding the first and including the last day; except that when the
last day falls on Sunday or a legal holiday, then the act may be done on the next
succeeding day which is not Sunday or a legal holiday.

(2) If a number of months is to be computed by counting the months
from a particular day, the period ends on the same numerical day in the concluding
month as the day of the month from which the computation is begun, unless there are
not that many days in the concluding month, in which case the period ends on the last
day of that month.

(3) When an act is to take effect or become operative from and after
a day named, no part of that day shall be included.

(d) Liberal Construction. All general provisions, terms, phrases and expressions
contained in these Codified Rules and Regulations Pelieies—and Procedures—of-the
Beard-of Trustees—of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority shall be
liberally construed in order that the true intent and meaning of the Board of Trustees
may be fully carried out.

(e) Minimum Requirements. In the interpretation and application of these
Codified Rules and RegulationsPelieies-and Procedures, they shall be held to be the
minimum requirements adopted for the promotion of the public health, safety,
comfort, convenience and general welfare.




212.03 REVIVOR; EFFECT OF RE-ENACTMENT, AMENDMENT OR
REPEAL.

(a) The repeal of a repealing provision of these Codified Rules and
RegulationsPelieies-and-Procedures-of-the Board-of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority does not revive the provision originally repealed or impair
the effect of any saving clause therein.

(b) The re-enactment, amendment or repeal of a provision of these Codified
Rules and RegulationsPelicies—and Precedures does not, except as provided in
subsection (c) hereof:

(1) Affect the prior operation of the provision or any prior action
taken thereunder;

(2) Affect any validation, cure, right, privilege, obligation or liability
previously acquired, accrued, accorded or incurred thereunder;

(3) Affect any violation thereof or penalty, forfeiture or punishment
incurred in respect thereto, prior to the amendment or repeal;

(4) Affect any investigation, proceeding or remedy in respect of any
such privilege, obligation, liability, penalty, forfeiture or punishment; and the
investigation, proceeding or remedy may be instituted, continued or enforced, and the
penalty, forfeiture or punishment imposed, as if the provision had not been repealed
or amended.

(c) If the penalty, forfeiture or punishment for any offense is reduced by
a re-enactment or amendment of a provision of these Codified Rules and
RegulationsPelieies-and-Procedures, the penalty, forfeiture or punishment, if not
already imposed, shall be imposed according to the provision as amended.

212.04 CONSTRUCTION OF SECTION REFERENCES.

(a) A reference to any portion of a provision of these Pelicies-and Proceduresof
the—Board—of TrusteesCodified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority applies to all re-enactments or amendments thereof.

(b) References in these Policies-and ProeceduresCodified Rules and Regulations
to action taken or authorized under designated sections of these Policies—and
ProeeduresCodified Rules and Regulations include, in every case, action taken or

authorized under the applicable legislative provision which is superseded by these
Policies-and-ProeeduresCodified Rules and Regulations.

212.05 CONFLICT OF LAWS.

(a) Inthe event of a conflict or inconsistency between any of the provisions of any
resolution or motion enacted by the Board of Trustees and a provision of the Bylaws
of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, the provision of the Bylaws shall
control.



(b) In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between any of the provisions of
these Policies-and Proecedures-ofthe Board-of TrusteesCodified Rules and Regulations
of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and another provision of these
Codified Rules and RegulationsPelicies-and Proecedures, including provisions of codes,
rules, regulations, agreements, policies, procedures or other documents adopted by
reference in these Codified Rules and RegulationsPelicies—and Procedures, or
otherwise adopted by the Board of Trustees but not codified in full in these Codified
Rules and RegulationsPelieies-and Precedures, that provision which 1s later in date
shall control, but if neither provision is later in date than the other, then that
provision which establishes the higher or stricter standard, or imposes the greater
restriction or regulation, shall control.

(¢) In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between any of the provisions of
these Codified Rules and RegulationsPelieies-andProcedures, including provisions of
codes, rules, regulations, agreements, policies, procedures or other documents
adopted by reference in these Codified Rules and RegulationsPelicies-and Procedures,
or otherwise adopted by the Board of Trustees but not codified in full in these Codified
Rules and RegulationsPelicies—andProecedures, and a provision of State-state or
Federal-federal law, the provision of State-state or Federal-federal law shall control,
except in those cases where the Board of Trustees is expressly authorized by State
state or Federalfederal law to enact legislation that is not consistent with State-state
and/or Federal-federal law.

212.06 SEVERABILITY.

(a) Each section and each part of each section of these Codified Rules and
RegulationsPelicies-and Procedures-of the Board-of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority is hereby declared to be an independent section or part of
a section and, notwithstanding any other evidence of legislative intent, it is hereby
declared to be the controlling legislative intent that if any such section or part of a
section, or any provision thereof, or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance, is held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining sections or parts
of sections and the application of such provision to any other person or circumstance,
other than those as to which it is held invalid or unconstitutional, shall not be affected
thereby, and it is hereby declared to be the legislative intent that these Codified Rules
and Regulations Pelicies-and Precedures-would have been adopted independently of
such section or part of a section so held to be invalid.

(b) The provisions of this section shall apply to the amendment of any section of
these Codified Rules and RegulationsPelicies—and Proecedures, whether or not the
wording of this section is set forth in the amendatory resolution or motion.

212.07 REPEAL.
(a) All motions and resolutions and parts of motions and resolutions of the Board
of Trustees, and all rules, regulations and orders promulgated under authority of such



motions and resolutions, or under authority of State-state or Federalfederal law, that
are in conflict with or in any manner inconsistent with any of the provisions of these

Codified Rules and Regulations Pelicies-andProcedures-of-the Board-of Trustees-of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, are hereby repealed.

(b) The repeal of any motion, resolution, rule, regulation or order shall not affect
any punishment or penalty incurred before the repeal takes effect, or any suit,
prosecution or proceeding pending at the time of the repeal, for an offense committed
or cause of action arising under the motion, resolution, rule, regulation or order
repealed.



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-105

AMENDING CHAPTER 212 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION OF THE
CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND
REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees (“Board”) of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) codified the resolutions
establishing its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2015-100, the Board changed the name of its
policies from “Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority” to “Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority” (“Code Book”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Chapter 212
Definitions and Interpretation should be amended to update the name of the Code Book.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Code Book Chapter 212 Definitions and Interpretation is hereby
amended to read as specified in Attachment A hereto.

Section 2. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment: A. Chapter 212 Definitions and Interpretation

Adopted: December 19, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



212.01
212.02
212.03

Resolution Attachment A

CHAPTER 212
Definitions and Interpretation
Definitions. 212.04 Construction of section
Rules of construction. references.
Revivor; effect of 212.05 Conflict of laws.
re-enactment, amendment or 212.06 Severability.
repeal. 212.07 Repeal.
CROSS REFERENCES

Urban mass transportation - see 49 U.S.C.A. 1601 et seq.
Urban Mass Transportation Administration, Department of

Transportation - see 49 C.F.R. Ch. VI

Regional transit authorities - see R.C. 306.30 et seq.

Creation of regional transit authority - see R.C. 306.31, 306.32 Rules and
regulations of Board of Trustees - see R.C. 306.34 Authority to adopt,

amend and repeal bylaws - see R.C. 306.35(D)

Dissolution of authority or modification of membership - see R.C. 306.54 Penalty
for violations of Section 306.35(D)(4) - see R.C. 306.99(B)

Interpretation of Bylaws - see Bylaws Art. X Amendments

and supplements - see ADM. 210.02

212.01 DEFINITIONS.
As used in these Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority, unless otherwise expressly provided or the context

otherwise requires:

(a)
(b)

(©

(d)
©)

®

()
@)
€))

"And" may be read "or," and "or" may be read "and," if the sense requires it.
"Authority” means the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority,
established pursuant to R.C. 306.32.

"Board" means the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority, appointed as provided in R.C. 306.33.

"County" means Cuyahoga County, Ohio.

"Land" and "real estate" include rights and easements of an incorporeal
nature."

Law" means any and all laws, including constitutions, statutes, ordinances,
resolutions, rules, regulations, motions and orders, of the United States, any
state, any political subdivision of a state, any municipal corporation or any
other legal entity.

"May" is permissive.

"Month" means a calendar month.

"Motion" means a legislative enactment of the Board of Trustees that is
recorded in the minutes of the Board but which is not separately published.
"Owner," when applied to property, includes a part owner, joint owner or



tenant in common of the whole or any part of such property.

(k) "Person" means the State, a municipal corporation, a political subdivision, a
public or private corporation, an individual, a partnership, a firm, an
association, a business trust, an estate, a trust or any other entity.

() "Premises," when used as applicable to property, extends to and includes land
and buildings.

(m) "Property" includes real and personal property and any mixed and lesser
estates or interests therein. "Personal property" includes every kind of
property except real property; "real property" includes land, tenements and
hereditaments.

(n) "Public place" means any place to or upon which the public resorts or travels,
whether such place is owned or controlled by a municipality, the State or the
United States, or any agency of the State or the United States, or is a place
to or upon which the public resorts or travels by custom or by invitation,
express or implied.

(0) "Reasonable time" means such time only as may be necessary for the prompt
performance of an act or the giving of required notice.

(p) "Residence" means an abode in which a person permanently resides.

(@) "Resolution" means a legislative enactment of the Board of Trustees that is
separately published and recorded.

(r) "Shall" is mandatory.

(s) "Sidewalk" means that portion of a street between the curb lines or lateral
lines and the right-of-way lines, which is intended for the use of pedestrians.

(t) "State" means the State of Ohio.

(u) "Street," "highway" and "alley" mean the entire width subject to an easement
for public right of way, or owned in fee by a municipality, county or the State,
of every way or place, of whatever nature, whenever any part thereofis open
to the use of the public as a matter of right for purposes of public travel. The
word "alley" means any such way or place providing a secondary means of
ingress and egress from a property.

(v) "Transit facility" means:

(1) A street railway, motor bus, tramline, subway, monorail, rapid
transit, airplane, helicopter, ferry or other ground or water transportation system
having as its primary purpose the regularly scheduled mass movement of passengers
between locations within the territorial boundaries of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority, including all rights of way, power lines, rolling stock, equipment,
machinery, terminals, buildings, administration and maintenance and repair facilities,
and supporting parking facilities, and franchise rights attendant thereto, but excluding
therefrom trucks and facilities designed for use in the movement of property by truck;

(2) Docks, wharves, warehouses, piers and other port, terminal or
transportation facilities and marinas;

(3) Facilities used, available for use or designed for use to aid in the
safe taking off or landing of aircraft, for the safety, storage and maintenance of
aircraft, for the comfort and accommodation of users of air transportation, including
persons, property and mail, or for the safe and efficient operation and maintenance of

2



an airport, and buildings and facilities as are reasonably necessary for the comfort and
accommodation of the users of transit facilities; or
(4) Any combination of the foregoing.
(w) "Written" and "in writing" include any representation of words, letters or
figures, whether by printing or otherwise.

212.02 RULES OF CONSTRUCTION.

(a) Common and Technical Use. Words and phrases shall be read in context and
construed according to the rules of grammar and common usage. Words and phrases
that have acquired a technical or particular meaning, whether by legislative definition
or otherwise, shall be construed accordingly.

(b) Singular and Plural; Gender; Tense.
(1) The singular includes the plural, and the plural includes the
singular.
(2) Words of one gender include the other genders.
(8) Words in the present tense include the future.

(¢) Computation of Time.

(1) The time within which an act is required by law to be done shall
be computed by excluding the first and including the last day; except that when the
last day falls on Sunday or a legal holiday, then the act may be done on the next
succeeding day which is not Sunday or a legal holiday.

(2) If a number of months is to be computed by counting the months
from a particular day, the period ends on the same numerical day in the concluding
month as the day of the month from which the computation is begun, unless there are
not that many days in the concluding month, in which case the period ends on the last

day of that month.
(3) When an act is to take effect or become operative from and after
a day named, no part of that day shall be included.

(d) Liberal Construction. All general provisions, terms, phrases and expressions
contained in these Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority shall be liberally construed in order that the true intent and
meaning of the Board of Trustees may be fully carried out.

() Minimum Requirements. In the interpretation and application of these
Codified Rules and Regulations, they shall be held to be the minimum requirements
adopted for the promotion of the public health, safety, comfort, convenience and
general welfare.

212.03 REVIVOR; EFFECT OF RE-ENACTMENT, AMENDMENT OR

REPEAL.
(a) The repeal of a repealing provision of these Codified Rules and Regulations
of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority does not revive the provision

3



originally repealed or impair the effect of any saving clause therein.

(b) The re-enactment, amendment or repeal of a provision of these Codified
Rules and Regulations does not, except as provided in subsection (c) hereof:

(1) Affect the prior operation of the provision or any prior action
taken thereunder;

(2) Affect any validation, cure, right, privilege, obligation or liability
previously acquired, accrued, accorded or incurred thereunder;

(3) Affect any violation thereof or penalty, forfeiture or punishment
incurred in respect thereto, prior to the amendment or repeal;

(4) Affect any investigation, proceeding or remedy in respect of any
such privilege, obligation, liability, penalty, forfeiture or punishment; and the
investigation, proceeding or remedy may be instituted, continued or enforced, and the
penalty, forfeiture or punishment imposed, as if the provision had not been repealed
or amended.

(c) If the penalty, forfeiture or punishment for any offense is reduced by
a re-enactment or amendment of a provision of these Codified Rules and
Regulations, the penalty, forfeiture or punishment, if not already imposed, shall be
imposed according to the provision as amended.

212.04 CONSTRUCTION OF SECTION REFERENCES.

(a) A reference to any portion of a provision of these Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority applies to all re-
enactments or amendments thereof.

(b) References in these Codified Rules and Regulations to action taken or
authorized under designated sections of these Codified Rules and Regulations
include, in every case, action taken or authorized under the applicable legislative
provision which is superseded by these Codified Rules and Regulations.

212.05 CONFLICT OF LAWS.

(a) Inthe event of a conflict or inconsistency between any of the provisions of any
resolution or motion enacted by the Board of Trustees and a provision of the Bylaws
of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, the provision of the Bylaws shall
control.

(b) In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between any of the provisions of
these Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority and another provision of these Codified Rules and Regulations, including
provisions of codes, rules, regulations, agreements, policies, procedures or other
documents adopted by reference in these Codified Rules and Regulations, or otherwise
adopted by the Board of Trustees but not codified in full in these Codified Rules and
Regulations, that provision which is later in date shall control, but if neither provision
is later in date than the other, then that provision which establishes the higher or
stricter standard, or imposes the greater restriction or regulation, shall control.

4



(¢) In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between any of the provisions of
these Codified Rules and Regulations, including provisions of codes, rules,
regulations, agreements, policies, procedures or other documents adopted by
reference in these Codified Rules and Regulations, or otherwise adopted by the Board
of Trustees but not codified in full in these Codified Rules and Regulations, and a
provision of state or federal law, the provision of state or federal law shall control,
except in those cases where the Board of Trustees is expressly authorized by state or
federal law to enact legislation that is not consistent with state and/or federal law.

212.06 SEVERABILITY.

(a) Each section and each part of each section of these Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is hereby declared to
be an independent section or part of a section and, notwithstanding any other
evidence of legislative intent, it is hereby declared to be the controlling legislative intent
that if any such section or part of a section, or any provision thereof, or the application
thereof to any person or circumstance, is held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the
remaining sections or parts of sections and the application of such provision to any other
person or circumstance, other than those as to which it is held invalid or
unconstitutional, shall not be affected thereby, and it is hereby declared to be the
legislative intent that these Codified Rules and Regulations would have been adopted
independently of such section or part of a section so held to be invalid.

(b) The provisions of this section shall apply to the amendment of any section of
these Codified Rules and Regulations, whether or not the wording of this section is
set forth in the amendatory resolution or motion.

212.07 REPEAL.

(a) All motions and resolutions and parts of motions and resolutions of the Board
of Trustees, and all rules, regulations and orders promulgated under authority of such
motions and resolutions, or under authority of state or federal law, that are in conflict
with or in any manner inconsistent with any of the provisions of these Codified Rules
and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, are hereby
repealed.

(b) The repeal of any motion, resolution, rule, regulation or order shall not affect
any punishment or penalty incurred before the repeal takes effect, or any suit,
prosecution or proceeding pending at the time of the repeal, for an offense committed
or cause of action arising under the motion, resolution, rule, regulation or order
repealed.



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
APPROVING A COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT WITH THE 2023-106
FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE/OHIO LABOR COUNCIL, INC. Date:

COVERING CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT FOR TRANSIT POLICE | pecember 14, 2023

LIEUTENANTS

Initiator:
Human Resources

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval 00 Review/Comment 0O Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will approve a Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA") with
the Fraternal Order of Police/Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (“FOP/OLC”). The term of the
agreement will be from the signing of the contract through August 31, 2026. The proposed
CBA describes the “Conditions of Employment” for lieutenants of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority (“GCRTA”) Transit Police Department covered by the FOP/OLC
Gold bargaining unit. This CBA covers about 4 to 5 employees of GCRTA’s approximate
2,200 active positions.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The FOP/OLC Gold bargaining unit is a newly recognized
bargaining unit. Negotiations for an agreement for this bargaining unit commenced on
September 7, 2023. Four joint bargaining sessions occurred during September through
November of 2023 between representatives of the FOP/OLC and the GCRTA. These
negotiations culminated in a tentative agreement for a CBA being reached between the parties
on November 27, 2023. The CBA was approved by union membership on December 4, 2023.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The subject action has important policy implications, principally in the areas
of cost control and labor relations.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The estimated costs and savings associated with the major economic
provisions of the proposed CBA will be provided to the Board of Trustees.

ALTERNATIVES: Not approve the proposed CBA. Management would be required to direct
the staff to return to the bargaining table with the FOP/OLC to seek further changes or

revisions.

RECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the
proposed CBA with the FOP/OLC.

ATTACHMENTS: None
Recommended and certified as appropriate

to the availability of funds, legal form and
conformance with the Procurement requirements.

Gen?fal Manager, Chief Execufive O




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-106

APPROVING A COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT WITH THE
FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE/OHIO LABOR COUNCIL, INC. COVERING
CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT FOR TRANSIT POLICE LIEUTENANTS

WHEREAS, the lieutenants of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
("“GCRTA") Transit Police Department sought representation with the Fraternal Order of
Police/Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (*FOP/OLC") and were recognized as the FOP/OLC Gold
bargaining unit; and

WHEREAS, collective bargaining between representatives of the FOP/OLC and
representatives of the GCRTA has produced a proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
(*CBA") covering the period from the signing date of the agreement through August 31, 2026;
and

WHEREAS, the members of the FOP/OLC Gold bargaining unit ratified the proposed
CBA on December 4, 2023.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the CBA for employees represented by the FOP/OLC Gold bargaining
unit, as negotiated, be and it is hereby approved, and the General Manager is authorized to
execute said agreement.

Section 2. That said contract will be funded through the General Fund.

Section 3. That the CBA will become effective upon the signing of the agreement by the
parties.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 19, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



740 7 98ed

Hoday anuanay

%00°'00T (%e2L12) (ve'ves'se) $ TLLOSE'LVE §  TEQ'9SE'ZLT §  SEB'OEL 189T'EC $  9IS6LE'EC  $ GNNd TYYINID - GIAIZIIY HSVD TVLOL
%99'T {%62L'v6) {809'€52°18) 6€0°78L'S8 TEV'BTSY 8v9°9¢ 905°6S Y5198 HSVJ 30 S3I2UNOS ¥IHLO ANV SINIWISUNENITY TVLIOL
%000 - (T2v'e67'18) TTY'e67'18 - - - - dY¥v vY¥3a34
%LT0 (%g€¥S) (810'£88) S65TEST LL5'SvL (Le60E) 9TT'LS 64192 S4di1303Y SNOINVTIEISIN
%100 {9%9'96) (805°820'T) TE6'E90'T L4453 S20'1 - S20'T IINVISISSY ONILYHILO 1433
%EYO %L9'8ET LOE'TE8 F44 %743 6IY'S9TT - - - (HOLVIN T¥D01 ‘3LVLS “IvH3a34) IONVNILNIVIN IALLNIATY
%vT0 %66'ETTT S£6'909 £8YvS 811199 {06€'7) 06£T - (HDLVIN T¥D01 ‘3LVLS “TvH¥3034) INIWIASHNENITY INVYO
%1L0 %EB'LE L60°£2S 96b'E6E'T £65°026'T 056'85 - 05685 SANNA3Y XVL INVdOUd/ONDI/ 1IN
‘HSYD 40 $308N0S YIHI0 GNY SINIWISEINaiNiad
%6T'T (%8v°2) {16v'68) 6IY'0T9'E 826°0ZS'E (oLL'1€) 8vb'991 8L9°PET JIN3AIY YIHIO TVIOL
%1T°0 %E0"9E 81108 Y9E'Te 81'70€ SYZ'IT 159 20611 Y3IHLO
%91°0 %80°V6 LIY'T09 S6Z'6E9 TIL'OVTT (958°6¥) [iTAX:TAS YIE'9L FNOINI LS3HILNI
%110 %LT'T €9E'E €ST'L8T 915062 689'8 YS6°LT E¥9'9€ INODN! TVINIY
%91°0 %Ly 759'6T €98'9TY SIS'9EY - - - SNOISSIWINGD SS31 SLHOI ONHAYN
%910 {%£8'8¢E) (tv0'v6L) YrL'vr0'T £0L0S2'T (8v8'1) £59'8 6189 SNOISSININOD/SNOISSIINOD/ONISILYIAAY
FANIATY 43RI0
%Y8'L8 %E0'E 665'6€0°L L6Y'86T'TEL 960'8£7'6€C SL0°965 588'220'T¢ 096'819'TZ 3NNIATY XVL 3SN ANV STTVS TV.LOL
%Y8°L8 %E0'E 665'6€£0L L6Y'86TTET 960"8EL6ET S£0'965 S88'770'1¢C 096'81912Z Xv1 350 8 SIIVS
‘INNIATY XV 3571 GNV STTVS
%02'6 {%€8°Y) (75 7%41) LI8'6££'9C 9/5'890'SZ 288'shT Zr8'€66'T YTL'6ETT $34V4 YIDONISSVd VL0L
%0ET %87'8E TES'LELT TEP'BES'Y £€96'L7'9 789'6TT 896'ZES 059'759 ONLLINIIL 3IUSOW
%28'0 (%Iv'1T) (816987} SPL'ETST £18'922'T - - - SS¥d-N
%ST0 (%1£v8) {6¥5'v0L'E) 9E0'V6E'Y £8Y'689 {v11'7) 989°LT L5891 SQYYIIYVd IN3ANLS
%T'T %S5°CT T0TEEL 9598'6£8'S 856'745'9 SLL'ET L8Z'0£9 290'059 ST1VS LINDIL/SSVd
%IY'E %9L'T 765'6YC S 6PLES0'6 S  TYE'E0E’s $  6ESE 106218 S ovb'9i8 S SIYVH HSVD
’S34v7 Y3IDNISSVd
WL0L 40 % FONVHI% JONVHD 220z £207 JONVHD prdird €202
€202 13quisnon 13GWISAON
31VG OL ¥V3A HLNOW LNINYND

T20Z ‘0E ¥IAWIAON ANV €702 ‘0€ YIGWIAON Q3ANI A0IY3d 3HL ¥O4
GNN4 TVHINID - ¥V3A HOIHd 0L GIEVJINOD QIAITIIY HSVYD 40 LYOd3Y

ALIMOHLNV LISNVYL TYNOISIY ANVIIATTD HILVIYD FHL




Z Jo T 938ey

%90'T 992'88v's  $  TE0'9SE‘TLZ $  S9L'[98'99Z ¢ %59°0 880°SST $ 91S'6L6'€T  $  BTY'VTR'EC $
%EL°ST L82°216 1EY'8ZS'Y vYT'9T9'E {%£6798) (£98'bLS) b51'98 L10°T99
(%851t} (£95°0£8) LLS'SYL y1'9L2'T (%65°'£8) (8£8"v81) 6L1'57 LT0'TTZ

- yer'se YIY'SE - - ST0'T S70'T -

%89°SY 6It'59E 6T¥'S9T'T 000'008 - {o00'002) - 000°00C
%6569 8TY'TLT 819799 000'06€ - (0000S) - 00008
%10°L9 £65'0LL £65'026'T 000'0ST'T {%€5°02) {0s0°THT) 05685 000002
{%1L°LT) (ez6'252) 826'0ZS°E 1S8'8LL'Y {%61"9€) {zae'cs) 8L9'VET 090°21
(%ST'2L) (815°28() 78Y'20€ 000'060'T {%5t°98) (860°56) 206°tT 000°0TT
%85°STT ZTL'069 Lot 000°05S %EYLS yTE'9T yIE'9L 00005
%YL TT 9TS'0E 915'062 000097 (%6€°8) {25€'€) £09'9€ 0000
%EV'EE S9€'60T STS'9ed 0st'L2E - - - -
(%¥0'6€) {866'008) E0L'0ST'T 10£'150'C {(%9v°ev) (tv's) 6189 050'2T
%9T'1T E6V'TL6'T 960'8£L'6ET €09°S92'9EC %L8'T 80£°96€ 096'819'1Z ST
%971 €6Y°TL6'T 960'BET'6ET £09'592°9ET %L8'T 80/°96E 096'819'TZ TSTTILTT
%0001 60F'T9EC 9/5'890°6Z L9T'L0LTE %SLET S29°0TY HTL'6ET'T 660°62L°T
%007 96L°2CT €96'SLT'9 (9T'EST'9 %85'EL 1SSVt 059'299 660'82S
%8 LT LT8'9EE £78'97TT 000°068'T - {000°00T) - 000001
%LTTIT L8y'sty 184689 00092 %07'L5ST TLS'ST ZLS'9T 000'T
(9%¥Lb) (zv0'L2e) 856'27£5'9 0000069 %180 790'pST 790'v59 000°008
%Y0¥T THE'€08'T S TVE'E0E'S $  000°005'L S %L09E ovY'9Te S Ovy9r8 $ 000009 $

IINVIHYA% ADINVIEVA WNLY 13vang IINVIBVA% IINVIHYA WNLV 139ang

31va OL ¥V3A HANOW LNIHYND

€20¢ ‘O€ Y3I9WIAON GIAN3 AOI¥3d FHL YOS

AGNN4 TYYINID - 139004 0L GFHVYdINIOD QIAI3DIH HSVD 40 1HOd3Y
ALIYOHLINY LISNVYL TYNOI93Y ANVIIAITI HILVYIYD FHL

Hoday anuanay

AN TYYINID - QIAIFI3Y HSVYD TW10L

HSYD 40 S3DUNOS YIHLO ANV SININISUNBINIAY TVLIOL

dHY TvHQ3d

$1d13034 SNOINVTIIISIN

IDNVLSISSY SNILYHIHO Tvy3aad

(HILVIN TWDO0T '3LV1S “Ivy3Q33) 3ONVNILINIVIN JALLNIATN
(HOLVIN WDOT ‘3LVLS “IV¥3034) INTNISHNAWIIY INVYO
SANNJ3Y XVL AINVOH¥d/ONI/1INA

‘HSYD 40 S2D¥N0S YIHLO ONY SINIWISHNEWIFY

INNIATY HIHLO TVIOL

Y3HIO
FNOINI LSIHILINI
JNOONI TVINIY

SNOISSHAINGD SS31 SIHOTE DNINVN
SNOISSIAINOD/SNOISSIINOD/ONISILYIAQY
‘ANNINIY HIHLO

$31aISENS ONILYYALO IVL0L

XVL35N B S3TvS

‘ANNIAIY XYL 31 NV STIVS

S3YVL YIADNISSVd IVLIOL

ONILINDIL 3TIS0NW
$Svd-n

5Q¥VI3Y¥v4 INIANLS

S3TVS LINIIL/SSVd
S3YV4 HSVD

‘S3UYV] JIONISSVd




%00°G vae £99°'06 000'008'¥ 0eL S31LI™ND3S dOLTIH OWIH4 G20Z/LLIL  €TOTILLUL
%00°9 9 2L6'SLL 000'000'S 0€L S31LHND3S dOLTIH OWTHA ¥20z/9LIZL  220zi9Niet
%¥i's 9zl 889'Gy 005'86%'L p6cl SNVI0JIN 134118 OWIHAL §¢02/8¢2/0L  2e0Z/9e/0L
%P0’ GeL L1129 026'L40'2 $601 SNVIOOIN 134i18 gTHd §20z/LZ/0L  Ze0Tiieion
%¥0°G 615 LIE'E9 GoB'EEL’} 168 SNYTOOIN 13411S OWHA S20Ziviy  220eiveloL
%0E" P 669 1£6'¢L2 000'000'G G601 SNYT0DIN 13411S g7TH4 G202/0e/6  2Z0Z/OE/6
%00 199 000's18 000'000'S} G601 SNVYIOJIN 1341LS g7Hd §20Z/82/8  220T/0E/8
%EL'E €09 osv'atle 000°000'G1 G601 SNYI00IN 134418 g7H4d RLAVATEA L R AN TA XA
%90°¢ L9 z6.l'zee 011'266'6 €801 SNVIOOIN 134118 OWTHA4 §e0ciciis  zeoeiveis
%002 vey 822'02 TAAR 0801 SNVI00IN 134iLS g044 SeozioLie  zeoeivi/e
%644 Lig 610'L §ei've'e 9rs SMVIODIN 13diLs g1Hd ¥202/82/8  220z/82/E
%¥l'S l - $ LLL'YSE'YS 8 L OIHO JO 31Vis OIHO YV.IS-HOLYN w001  £202/L/2L  €202/0E/L1

GNMd HOLYIN Tv007
%EE'S £5.°8EE $ QNNd INSWADHO0HINT MV IVLOL
%¥L'S l - $ L5¥'1ee $ 13 OIHO 40 31ViS OIHO ¥v1Ss €202/LICL  £20z/oe/LL
%0L'2 13 - $ 962'L1L $ 3 dIIMS-MNYE AT H03 A3 £c0e/LeL  g2oeoe/iL GNNd ININTOHOLINT MV
%vL’S - $ 619'88Z'y $ QNN ONVHNASNI TV1L0L
%042 3 - 0es 13 ANVE ASM HO3 Aar £202/1/2L  £202/0e/LL
Y%bl's 3 - 3 680°882'Y $ 3 OIHO 40 31vViS OIHO ¥vis £202/1eL  £20zT/0e/LL

UNMd 3ONVHNSNI
%¥8°¢ ZiE'pEZ  § 9Zsvov'ey  $ GNNd TVHEN3D TVLIOL
%0L°Z 4 - 6EE'8LL'e L ANVE ATH dO3 AIM £20z/L2L  e202/0e/L
%106 L - 685'9¢ 3 HNVE NOLONLINNH LNNODDV XVL SIS €20e/i/eL  £20T/oe L
%ET'S 3 - §02'6L9 L MNVE ONd INNODDV AQOLSND ONd  €202/4/i2L  €202/08/41
%0L'2 i - ¥2L'L0E l HNYHE A3M ONNd ALIAILOV 33A0THWS  €202/4/2L  €20Z/08/LL
%¥L'G l 096'6/8'8} 3 OIHO 40 31v1s QIHO Hvis €202/1/21  €202/0eElLL
%EE'E €48 £98'L1L 188°/01'8 5604 SNVIODIN 13411S gIH4 §20¢/L2/9  2202iLei9
%00°€ 806 052°00} 000°000'c S60L SNVYIODIN T1341LS gH4 geoeieey  zoozrezy
%021 £er 009'21 000'000'¢ G601 SNVI0JIN 134118 a7H4 §e0e/Le/l  2eoeiLei
%S2'0 16 osi'e 005°266'Y S601 SNVI0JIN 134118 8044 yeoe/Lie Lzoe/ie
%0L°2 3 - $ 2z6'LLL $ l MNVE AT AMAIN ASM-LOOY INVHONSIIW  €202/1/2)  €202/08/i1 QN4 TYHINID
%10'S - $ 866'vy8's $ ANNd INSWIHLLIY ONOSE TVL10L
%0’ l - $ 866'v+8'6 H 13 ANVE NOLONILLNNH 1IMYVIN ATNOW AT ARN AR YA T4 (v A ONNd LNIWIYILTIY aNod
G731A  ALNNLYN  1S3Y3UNI IVdIONRd SAVQ NOILLNLILSNY LANIWNULSNI ALva 3iva annd
IOVMIAY OL SAVA Q3NHODV VLol Wy3L ALENLVYIN 1N

Z jol obey

FOVHIAV

£20Z '0£ YIABINIAON 40 sV

SLINIWLSIANI AHNSVIYL 40 AHOLNIANI

ALRMOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIOZY ANYIIATD ¥ILVIHD



%Tq'¥

oce 668°058'5$

6.8'zri'sse §

SANNH 717V TVLOL ANYYD

%L8Y 855'l8¥'z 3 182'580'851 ¢ UNN4d SANISIY VI0L
%¥l'S L - LO0L'tPLeS 3 QIHO 40 31vlS OIHO ¥vLS €¢0e/L/eL  €202/0Ci
%0L°¢ 3 - [424 KA 2 MNVE AN ¥O3 AIM €20Z/L/eL  £20z/og/LL
%€ 3 - 00S'210's 11 SINYE ONd INNOOOV AQOLSND ONd  €202/L12L  €Z0Z/0E/LL
%88°S 826 zL6'0LL 000'000°s G601 SNVIOJIN 1331LS g04dd 9e0T/LLIL €202/LLiL
%0v'S oog 05’02t 000'000'G 288 SNVIODIN 134118 OWTHA4 veoziieiel  €e0e/eeio
%9E°S €06 151'v2E 000°000'G G601  S3ULIKNDAS JOLTUH JWIHA 9202/8LIS  £202/9L/9
%00'9 9z8 000°05 000'000'01 S601 SNVIOOIN 134148 87H4 S20Z/9/€ £e0z/9/e
%leS 509 199'19¢ 000°000'0} LeL S3ILIHND3S dOLTHH OWIH3 Sz0e/8ele £202/92/
%90°G §09 £85'¢61 000°000'S LeL S3LIENDAS dOLTHH OWHA G20e/8cie  eToz/8eie
%EL'S GLS 0LL'z61 000'000'S L6 SNVTIODIN 1341LS g7Hd G20cT/LZi8  €202/LLe
%SCS (B¢} 8y LL 000'000'S 899 S3UL™NOIS dOLTTUH gH4 ¥e02/02/2L  €zoeivere
%EE'S 689 6LL'LLZ 000°000'S €001 SNVYIOOIN 134iLS 8044 Seoe/LLLL  g20eiLe
%E0'S S6l GL9'te L£5'8E6 LIS SNVIODIN 13dILS g1H4 be0e/82/9  £202/SLie
%SG1L'S 514°] 0v¥8'06 000'000'S G601 SAYIODIN 134iLS OWTH4A 9¢oeiLlell  gzoelLilL
%8L°0 16¢ 2911y 806°S66'y S604 SNVIODIN 134ILS 4O Wi AUNSY3IXL SN Peoc/SLILL  1202iSLitL
%C9'E 892 cLz'oge 000'000'S 165 SILIKNO3S dOLTTH 49 wol} g4 y202/8e/c  220T/9Lie
%Se'E 0¥S Glz'os 000'000'G 5604 SAVTIODIN 13411S 49 woy gHd 5202/e2/5  eeue/eess
%960 bre 856'22 G8L'V66'Y G601 SNVIOJIN 13411LS 49 wol godd yeoe/erzL  Leoeie/ct
%SL'E Lz 8g6'gy 000'000'S £9€ S3LLYIND3S JOLTIH 87H3 ye0e/8e/e  2eoe/oe/8
%0V 666 LE6°2L2 000'000'S §601 SNVIODIN 1341LS a7H4 G20Z/0e/6  220Z2/0E/6
%08°€ LyS 198'vL 000'000'S G604 SNVIOJIN 13dLLS g7H4 Ge02/0e/9  2202/08/9
%E£9'C 194 802'061 000'000's G601 SNVIODIN 1341LS 87Hd SeozvLiy  zeoTiviy
QNNd SAY3STY
%ET'L 9LLiez 8 BL5'820'k  $ ONNA TVLIHYD VY vioL
%EE0 9zt 00L'L 000°000'2 G601 SNVYI0DIN 134118 g04dd beoe/siv Leozisty
%LS'0 20e LLE'6L 000°000' G601 SNYIOJIN 1341LS g91H4 y20e/0e/6  1202/0€/6
%LG°0 20e §L6'8¢ 000'000'e $604 SNVIOJIN 134118 a4 $202/0e/6  1202/0¢/6
%EY0 L9¢ vz 000°000'S S60} SNVYIOOIN 134118 g1H4 ¥202/92/8  1202/9Z/8
%04’ 8Ll y9L's GLE'SYE'L 44 SNYI0JIN T341LS g1Hd veoe/geie geoe/seie
%S8°1 862 SE6'S SLe'6v8'L €16 SNVIOJIN 134148 gH4 veoz/se/e  2Toziseie
%952 o1 %4 234 A 861'y66'V ELs S3ILR-INOAS dOLTHH JLON AUNSY3YL SN LAV AU S AV AL
%0L'2 8 - $ 0L5'eve $ 3 ANVE AIH HOJ AIH €202/L/ZL  e2oe/oe/LL ONN4 VLIdYD V1Y
%vL'S - $ 041°06€°L $ GNN4 NOISN3d Tvi0L
%¥LS 9 - oel'ese’l 13 OIHO 40 31Lvis OIHO ¥v1s €20e/L/ZL  £202/0L/LL
%0L'2 13 - $ ov0'L $ 3 MNVE A3H H03 A £€202e/L/ZL  £T0e/oen ) ONNd NOISN3d
YEL'Y £52°806's_$ yI89L YL $ ONN4 HOLVYW Tv001 IvioL
%0LE 3 - 158°Z01 l ANVE A3M YOI ASN-NISYE HOLVD £e0¢/LelL  €202/0E/LL
%0L'C 3 - ZLL'S62' ) 13 ANYE ATH HO3-INYHO €coeriiel  geozioerit
%0LC L - §eL'sLe L dIFAMS-MNYE ATN HOd ASM-HOLVIA TvOO7 £202/1/2L  €20T/0E/L
%00'9 £e6 £€8'04 000°000'S G601 SNVYIOJIN 134118 g87H4 9202/8/¢ £€202/9/¢
%90°6 188 £85°€61 000°000'S LeL S31LI¥NO3IS dOLTIH OWIHS S20z/8e/e  ceoelsere
%EL'S 9€9 OvE'v6E 000'000'0L 0L6 SNVIOJIN 1341LS g4 GeQe/Lele  geoeiLere
%EE’S JAZ) 61L'tLe 000'000'S €001 SNVIOJIN 1341LS 9044 SeoerLLLL  ezoe/Lie JUOD-GNNG HOLVYIN VD0
QI3A  ALENLVIN  LSTHIINI VdIONRId SAVQ NOLLNLILSNI ININNYLSNI 3Ilva alva AN
JOVHIAV Ol SAVA  d3NYOOV wioL Wa3aL ALRINLVIA [N

Z joz abey

FOVHIAY

£20¢ ‘0¢ ¥IGWIAON O sV
SLINIWLSIANI AMNSVYIYL 40 AHOLINIANI
ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOIDIY ANVIIAT O HILVINO



0$

866'v¥8'6$
JUsWaIney puog

056'1L¥'E SL6'0v5'8 £00'019°'L S.6'0£6 $ | 526'0¢86 $ - $ 6.6'0¢6 000°'516'LE $
005'L6S"L 0S2'00€'L 000'050' 052'062 052'062 - 05.'052 000°0£0°01
005°665°L osi'zer't 000'082'L 0S.'TLL 0SL'2LL - 0S2'TLL 000'0L6'9
0S4'96V'v S.£'860'Y 000'004'€ G/E'86¢ G/E'88E - S/E'86¢ 000'GE6'SL
00z'8zg’t 004’614 000'0L9'L 001's0L $ | ooL'soL $ - $ 00L'604 000'0v0's $
fordir4 €zoz/uTL €Z0T/LTL gToT/LiTh €202/19 £202/4i9 £20ziL9 2zoTIVEL
Juawasnnbay puawelinbay jejqedey 1ejqefed Auawalinbey jeiqeded jojqeded Buipuesing
geq 12101 20138 1920 jedioupg Isaa3u) ELTTNET B ET ] tedoupd 1saau] tedidupd jejol

SNLYLS NV 2TNA3HOS JDINY3S 1830

£20Z '0¢ ¥IGWIAON 4O SY

ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL TVYNOIDIY ONVTIAZ 1O HALVIND

0€0Z 93Q
4202 v8g
920z 937
§20¢T v8Q

areq
Auney
feuyy

pasnbay episy 33 Alluow

(€202 40y apisy 198) aouejeg N

spuog [e10]
‘ABY XE4 S9IES-6107 SauUeS
‘AIY XB) S8|eS-gL0g Seuas
A9y XeL S9|ES-G 10T SOUSS

‘ADY Xe] S3(BS-YiLOZ Saues

spuog



piatA AeQ L pund Asuop Aunseas] SN sienba plaiA 1aden #

‘siig Aunseasy yuow 9 1o} spiaif jusjeainba uodnos sbesane Buinop #

%9470 %E0°0 %88°0- %54'0" XZAN! (43ANN) HIAO SATIIA IOVHIAY V.Y
%8S L %liL %bl't ¥68'v10'9 $ gzlees'soe ¢ %26’ %00'G %Se'¥ ¥62'58¥'91L $ vil'zyo'ele $ JLva OL ¥v3A
%LL'v %E6'e %09 91L'9vi'L FANA el A TES d38W=030
%9¢°¢ %L5°E %yee £19'198 ¥LL'9¥0'69¢ %1T’S %S¥'S %es'y 0LL'€61'L 8vi'LLy'E8E HIBWINAON
%L6C %80°¢ %L8'Z £92'208'L ¥68'8vL'65¢ %' %E¥'G %8¥'P L¥L'0£9'2 S0L'2v0'SLE 4380100
%8L2 %98°¢ %692 0v2'805 L28'LYE'EOE %12'S %68'S %9p'¥ ¥E6'LLE' L $50°'268'18¢€ H3AEGWN31d3S
%60°C %60°¢ %022 £61'66L 6.6'L89'0S€ %82 %02's %62'v £94'816'C 908'692'28¢ isnony
%941 %¥9'L %802 A 14 8£8'85¥'65¢ %¥l'G %61'G %8E ¥ $00'962'L LE1°259'28E Anr
%Lt %924 %¥8’L 19£'96¢ 691'6.6'65¢ %L6'F %80'G %0E'P ¥E9'99L°L 2L2'18E'Z6E NP
%080 %88°0 %S0} 990°€82 8¥9'505'9ve %6’V %6’y %0E'Y £V9'ZLY'L 16€'656'€8E AVIN
%0L°0 %E9"0 %850 805'60L $08'L9£'862 %68V %e8'¥ %61’y ¥6e'8EY'L G92'662'08E Rit-ti
%0L°0 %e¥'0 %E¥ 0 ¥6€'99 059'51£'982 %69 %ll'y %Ly Lee'ery'L 815'16€'82E HOUVYIN
%100 %S2'0 %520 08E'LY 962'0L¥'00€ %E¥'y %85V %96°¢ 62E'6Z0'L £€2'292'9¢E AdVNYE3d
%100 %940 %640 L9g'2E $ ces'vpe'oge ¢ %61 ¥ %9T ¥ %EL'E $5L'880°L $ 888'009'CLE $ AYVYONYT
#aaA # AQTAA [SREFN a3anNuvi JONYIVE #Q73IA #QT3A aI3iA Q3Nydvi AONVIVE HINOW
AINEYIN GHVANVYLS = 3OWVHIAY JSIHILINI JOVHIAY IHWAINOW QUVYANYLS JOVHIAY LSIHILNL JOVHIAY
ezoz P14

£207 '0¢ HIGWIAON HONOXUHL 31YQ OL UVIA
SONVINHOAMA LNIIWLSSANI 30 AHVININNS
ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOIOTY ONVISAZTD ¥IALVEND



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
REPORT ON INVESTMENT EARNINGS (CASH BASIS)
AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2023

BOND RETIREMENT FUND

HUNTINGTON MONEY MARKET $ 41,513.20
TOTAL NOVEMBER $ 41,513.20
2023 YEAR TO DATE 307,934.81
2022 YEAR TO DATE 77,772.12
GENERAL FUND
HUNTINGTON-SALES TAX ACCOUNT $ 8,921.88
STAROHIO 48,673.25
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 14,105.35
PNC CUSTODY ACCOUNT 4,389.59
MERCHANT ACCOUNT-KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 224 .11
TOTAL NOVEMBER $ 76,314.18
2023 YEAR TO DATE 1,240,713.42
2022 YEAR TO DATE 639,294.77
INSURANCE FUND
STAROHIO $ 12,935.69
TOTAL NOVEMBER $ 12,935.69
2023 YEAR TO DATE 210,051.81
2022 YEAR TO DATE 82,513.53
LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT $ 23.24
STAROHIO 1,465.05
TOTAL NOVEMBER $ 1,488.29
2023 YEAR TO DATE 11,175.03
2022 YEAR TO DATE 984.74
LOCAL MATCH FUND
STAROHIO-LOCAL MATCH $ 234,053.29
FHLMC 152,500.00
FFCB 133,250.00
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 5,720.83
TOTAL NOVEMBER $ 525,524.12
2023 YEAR TO DATE 4,865,239.85
2022 YEAR TO DATE 1,386,834.84
PENSION FUND
STAROHIO $ 6,331.01
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 1.66
TOTAL NOVEMBER $ 6,332.67
2023 YEAR TO DATE 63,593.22
2022 YEAR TO DATE 16,636.48
EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY ACCOUNT
KEY BANK MONEY MARKET $ 478.28
TOTAL NOVEMBER $ . 478.28
2023 YEAR TO DATE 1,781.34
2022 YEAR TO DATE 41.02
RTA CAPITAL FUND
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 3 545.18
TOTAL NOVEMBER $ 545.18
2023 YEAR TO DATE 229,810.52
2022 YEAR TO DATE 140,997.98

Page 1 of 2



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
REPORT ON INVESTMENT EARNINGS (CASH BASIS)

RESERVE FUND

AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2023

STARQOHIO $ 236,005.23
FHLB 81,250.00
FHLMC 134,375.00
FFCB 133,250.00
US TREASURY NOTE 12,500.00
US TREASURY NOTE 18,750.00
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 140.80
TOTAL NOVEMBER $ 616,271.03
2023 YEAR TO DATE 5,280,590.19
2022 YEAR TO DATE 1,053,705.63
TOTAL ALL FUNDS
NOVEMBER 2023 $ 1,281,402.64
2023 YEAR TO DATE $ 12,210,890.19
2022 YEAR TO DATE $ 3,398,781.11
2023 YEAR
NOVEMBER TO DATE
INTEREST RECEIVED (CASH BASIS) $ 1,281,402.64 $ 12,210,890.19
ACCRUED INTEREST:
BEGINNING: (5,938,531.16) (1,576,293.00)
ENDING 5,850,898.93 5,850,898.93
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME EARNED $ 1,193,770.41 3 16,485,496.12
AVERAGE INVESTMENT BALANCE (COST BASIS): $ 382,477,148 $ 379,642,114
AVERAGE YIELD ON INVESTMENTS: 4.52% 4.25%

Page 2 of 2



oge YA RS %00°00} 89z'c22'68¢ ¢ 69'zvL'sge ¢
¥08 %v8'¢ %1919 000'66.'2¢2 S12'v05'2€82
} %0L¢C %SEL 029'002'S 029'002'S
b %¥LS %80°¥€ §15'0L2'1€1 §16'0/Z'LElL
b %0.L¢ %00°0 962'LL 962'LL
b %6’ %08°¢ 6E8'620'LL  $ GE0'0SL'LL $
ALIKENLIVIN [SREIFN vioL LNNOWV TVdIONREd
JOVHIAY JOVHIAVY 40 IN30Y3d q0vd

£20Z ‘0¢ Y3IFWIAON SY
OI704180d LNIWLSIANI 40 NOLLISOdINOD

01|0J110d JusWysSaAu] [ejo]
SO|JLND9S JUBWIUIBA0YD) 'S’
JUNO20Y ajey ypald) sbuluien
o0 JB1g
JUNo20Y doams ueg AoM
JUNOo2Y Joxiel Asuop
juswINIsu|



*UDIIBULIOU] [RUCHIPPE 10}
08-070T 'ON UOIIN|0SaY S331SN.L JO PJEOE PUE (70 BINPBI0I SANBASIUIWIPY (A3ljod [AB1L) AlLIoHIny Jisuel] jeuoiSay puejBAd|) J81E3I0) By JO SUOnEINaY Pue $3INY PaYIPOD BY) JO 959 1a3deyD) 01 JayBJs asesld

2T0Z '£T Youew pajep Asuumy Juaig "y 03 uouid( AIOSIADY HRISUOISSILILIO] SIY3] o140
80-TTOZ JaqWINN uojuIdQ UOISSIWIWOD S3IYI3 OO
0202 ‘9 Aely pajep (sueyy (€837 - WOQ) paojuag Supy [A1ays 03 uojuldQ AIOSIAPY Jels UDISSILILIED SIIY33 OIYO
T-$Z20-INI-E00Z JqUINN uoludQ [BWIOU) UOISSIUWO) SINYIF OIYO
(3) pue (Q)€0°20T suonazs 3po) pasiray oiyo
Yum aauelduiod ui aq 03 sjienpinpul ajqeddde Joj papiaold Buiaq i UCNRWIOUI SIYL

310N
adpay jand jueg suieH QNS
Jesysiday puog uojjeiN V:o>. MIN jO jueg
SIUSWISRAU-OINO HY IS
12}MIBpULN
1UNODIY XB[ S3jeS pue JUSWIINSY puog sjueg uojsunuNy
UN033Y MOJIST paYL Yy
PJED2 1PaJ) PUE JUND3JY |BIPOISND jueg DNd
$331]3S Bupyueq utepy yueg Aay
diysuoniefa. Jo sumeN uoiINIASY| [eiduB UL Hueg
. €207 'OF J9GUBACN }O SY

sdiysuoneay jepueuy pue Jupjueg
Aoyiny jisuea] jeuoiday puepas)) J33eain





